
CABINET MEMBER FOR CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S SERVICES 
 
Venue: Town Hall, Moorgate 

Street, Rotherham. 
Date: Tuesday, 31 October 2006 

  Time: 12.00 NOON 
 
 

A G E N D A 
 

 
1. To determine if the following matters are to be considered under the categories 

suggested in accordance with the Local Government Act 1972.  
  

 
2. To determine any item which the Chairman is of the opinion should be 

considered as a matter of urgency.  
  

 
3. Apologies for Absence.  
  

 
4. Minutes of the previous meeting held on 10th October 2006 (herewith). (Pages 

1 - 2) 
  

 
FOR DECISION 

 
 
5. Arrangements for Integration of Connexions and Young People's Services 

(report herewith) (Pages 3 - 18) 
  

 
Joyce Thacker, report author 

 
 

FOR INFORMATION / DELIBERATION 
 

 
6. Revenue Budget Monitoring Report as at 30th September 2006 (herewith) 

(Pages 19 - 22) 
  

 
Joanne Robertson, report author 

 
 
7. School Balances and Planned Use (report herewith) (Pages 23 - 30) 
  

 
Joanne Robertson, report author 

 
 

 



8. Looked After Children - Monitoring Procedure of Post 16 Qualifications (report 
herewith) (Pages 31 - 34) 

  

 
Katy Hawkins, report author 

 
 
9. School Organisation Plan 2003/04 to 2007/08 - 3rd Update (report herewith) 

(Pages 35 - 41) 
  

 
Martin Harrop, report author 

 
 
10. Electronic Social Care Record (report herewith) (Pages 42 - 44) 
  

 
Phil Morris, report author 

 
 
11. Information Sharing Index (report herewith) (Pages 45 - 47) 
  

 
Susan Gray, report author 

 
 
12. Joint Inspection of Rotherham Youth Offending Services (report herewith) 

(Pages 48 - 51) 
  

 
Simon Perry, report author 

 
 
13. Joint Area Review (report herewith) (Pages 52 - 54) 
  

 
Julie Westwood, report author 

 
 



CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE’ SERVICES - 10/10/06 1G 
 

 

CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S SERVICES 
10th October, 2006 

 
Present:- Councillor S. Wright (in the Chair) and Councillor Havenhand. 
 
62. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 
 Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Burton and 

Whelbourn. 
 

63. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  
 

 Resolved:- That the minutes of the meeting held on the 22nd September, 
2006 be received as a correct record. 
 

64. CODE OF PRACTICE - YOUTH CABINET PROTOCOL  
 

 Consideration was given to the content of a report which had been written 
by Rotherham Youth Cabinet setting out a code of practice establishing 
the principles of the voice and influence of Rotherham Youth Cabinet and 
setting out a protocol for officers and others to follow when bringing items 
to the Youth Cabinet for consideration. 
 
The Code of Practice has been agreed by the Rotherham Youth Cabinet 
and Children and Young People’s Services Scrutiny Panel. 
 
Resolved:- That the Code of Practice be supported and submitted to 
Cabinet for it to be adopted prior to relevant bodies and officers being 
made aware of its content. 
 

65. ARRANGEMENTS FOR THE INTEGRATIONS OF CONNEXIONS AND 
YOUNG PEOPLE'S SERVICES  
 

 Consideration of this item was deferred pending the outcome of a briefing 
meeting between the Chairman and Officers. 
 

66. LOCAL AREA AGREEMENT - SIX MONTH REPORT  
 

 The Senior Head of Service reported that under the terms of the Local 
Area Agreement, a report on progress after six months needs to be 
submitted to Government Office for Yorkshire and the Regions. 
 
The report submitted set out information currently available on the 
Children and Young People’s Block, it being a review of progress against 
all outcomes and targets within the LAA. 
 
Given the need to satisfy reporting requirements of the Council, partners 
and Local Strategic Partnership, and to fit in with set meeting dates, it had 
been decided to submit an early draft for consideration. It has also 
allowed officers to identify weaknesses in data collection and systems. 

Agenda Item 4Page 1



2G  CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE’S SERVICES - 10/10/06 
  
 

 
 
 
 
Since the LAA began to be  implemented from April 2006 good progress 
has been made against agreed objectives. The report provides an 
overview and highlights the analysis of progress within the Children and 
Young People’s Block of the LAA Performance Information that is 
available for the stretch targets featured in the report and the appendix. 
 
However, despite good progress on many of the key outcomes of the 
LAA, there are examples of targets which are annual measures and have 
no interim targets, and which  need further development to become 
effective measures of performance. Some measures will need to be 
changed or deleted as part of the rationalisation process of local targets. 
 
Performance and finance data which is currently missing, is in the process 
of being gathered and will be incorporated in the final six month review 
report. 
 
Particular discussion took place on:- 
 
(a) the funding situation: 
 
(b) who controls Local Area Agreements and who is accountable; 
 
(c) the need to clarify outcomes and what will be achieved; 
 
(d) the Performance Management Framework. 
 
Resolved:- That the content of the report and appendix be noted and the 
final six month review report be submitted to the meeting scheduled for 
the 28th November, 2006. 
 

 

Page 2



 1

 
 
1.  Meeting: Children & Young People’s Services Cabinet Member 

2.  Date: 31st October 2006 

3.  Title: Arrangements for the integration of Connexions and 
Young People’s Services 

4.  Programme Area: Children & Young People’s Services 

 
 
5. Summary: 
 
This paper summarises the need for organisational change arising from the 
Government’s Green Paper, Youth Matters, from the implications of the break-up of 
the Connexions South Yorkshire Partnership  
 
The paper then proposes revisions to the existing Young People’s Services as a 
response to the need for change. 
 
 
6. Recommendations:   
 

Members are asked to approve: 
 

• Exemption from the tendering process until September 2008 for 
the Connexions contracts. Exemption is sought under Paragraph 
35 Chapter 1 Part IV Contract Standing Orders. 

• The development of a ‘Youth Offer’ for Rotherham in accordance 
with Green Paper proposals 

• That the YPS base budget is committed to the provision of 
universal services for all young people across RMBC and that 
external monies are targeted according to greatest need. 

 
Members are asked to note: 

 
• A revision to the management of existing services on an interim 

basis to include the current Young People’s Services and the 
management of the Connexions contracts. These integrated 
services will be known as Young People’s Services. 

• The interim management and organisational structure required for 
the revised arrangements as set out in Appendix 1.  

• The current version of the Connexions Transition Plan that has 
been approved by Government Office set out in Appendix 2 

 
 

Rotherham Metropolitan Borough Council – Report to Members 

Agenda Item 5Page 3



 2

7. Proposals and Details:  
 
The Green paper Youth Matters was published on 18th July 2005. 
 
The main proposal of the paper is that local authorities will lead on developing youth 
policy and deliver this through an integrated Youth Support Service providing 
services ranging from universally available activities to specialist and targeted 
support. Local authorities will be responsible for planning and commissioning 
services from a variety of public, voluntary and private providers, against a new 
statutory duty to secure 'positive activities for all young people'. There will also be a 
set of national standards for positive activities, which will provide a framework for 
local youth offers.  
 
Youth Matters does not advocate any single model for achieving an integrated 
service, stating that local authorities - increasingly influenced by young people - must 
decide on the structures that meet their needs.  
 
Progress will be evaluated against the Every Child Matters outcomes framework.  
Youth Matters outlines a framework for services to young people to be provided by 
integrated services within Children's Trust arrangements. 
 
 The Children's Trust arrangements are expected to: 

 
• Ensure positive activities. 
• Promote and support voluntary action. 
• Carry out information, advice and guidance functions. 
• Manage integrated targeted support. 

 
And the way in which these expectations are delivered should mirror the core 
functions of the Children's Trust arrangements: 

• Assess need. 
• Map services. 
• Plan through the C&YPS. 
• Monitor, evaluate, redesign and commission services. 

 
 Proposals are set out in the diagram below (taken from page 63 of the  
 Green Paper).  
 

Page 4



 3

 
 
 
Connexions 
 
The proposals of the Green Paper combined with the advent of Local Area 
Agreements have meant an end to former sub-regional arrangements for the 
management of the Connexions Service and Strategy.  
 
Current arrangements are that RMBC host a sub-regional Connexions Unit that 
contracts with Connexions suppliers across Barnsley, Doncaster and Rotherham.  A 
Connexions Deed agreed by the three Councils governs the work of this Unit. These 
arrangements come to an end on 31st March 2007 and all Connexions funding will 
then be channelled into the local authorities via the LAA. 
 
Several Connexions contracts will be inherited from the current Connexions Unit and 
these will become the subject of re-commissioning or tendering under the C&YPS 
Commissioning Framework 2006-9. However, as the management arrangements 
which will be responsible for this re-commissioning process are not yet in place, and 
indeed are the subject of this paper, we will not have sufficient time to undertake the 
full commissioning cycle and procurement process before April 2007. 
 
Members are therefore asked to agree exemption from the tendering process until 
September 2008 for the Connexions contracts. Exemption is sought under 
Paragraph 35 Chapter 1 Part IV Contract Standing Orders. 
 
The views of the Head of Legal Services and the Executive Director of Finance have 
been sought on the proposed exemption and the report confirms that an exemption 
is acceptable subject to Cabinet Member approval. 
 
The tendering process commencing in September 2007 will demonstrate propriety, 
value for money and compliance with European and Domestic law. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 5



 4

Statutory duties 
 
The Education and Inspection Bill will place a duty on local authorities to provide 
services for young people including positive activities. A government amendment to 
the Bill will add the duty to provide "personal and social development" for young 
people. A debate in the House of Lords in July clarified that the Government means 
by this youth work.  
 
There is already a statutory duty on the Secretary of State to provide all young 
people with access to impartial careers advice (Trade Union Reform and 
Employment Rights Act 1993 and Section 114 of the Learning and Skills Act 2000). 
Since 2001 this duty has been exercised through Connexions Partnerships and this 
will become the responsibility of Rotherham MBC from 1st April 2007. 
 
Under Section 140 of the Learning and Skills Act 2000, the Secretary of State has a 
duty to arrange assessment for young people with a learning difficulty or disability as 
defined by the Act to assist with their transition to post 16 opportunities. This duty will 
become the responsibility of Rotherham MBC from 1st. April 2007. 
 
LAA guidance states that Government Offices will want to be assured that ‘local 
areas have in place a robust client management system that meets the Connexions 
Client Information System (CCIS) to ensure national consistency to collate and track 
progress on a monthly basis’. 
 
All the above means that from 1st April 2007 new arrangements will be needed for 
the delivery of Connexions services within Rotherham and that there will be a need 
to integrate these services more fully with other services to young people in line with 
the Green Paper proposals. 
 
Consultation 
 
In order to consider the various options on how to achieve this integration an 
external consultation process has been undertaken using external funds, led by 
consultants appointed after a competitive tender.  
 
A reference group made up of all key stakeholders and chaired by George Trow, 
Principal of Rotherham College of Arts and Technology, oversaw the work of the 
external consultants. 
 
It is proposed that the principles of the revised service are those which emerged 
from the consultation with key stakeholders: 
 

• Maximising choices for young people. 
• Voluntary engagement of young people. 
• Centrality of the relationship between the young person with a skilled worker. 
• Services accessible to all but differentiated according to need. 
• Extending opportunity and equality of opportunity. 
• Clarity of offer to young people and to partners and clarity of how to access. 
• Consistent quality in delivery. 
• Building partnership capacity.                                                 

Page 6



 5

It is proposed that a ‘Youth Offer’ to young people is developed using the findings of 
the consultation as the base and that this includes an extended consultation with 
young people. 
 
Management Arrangements 
 
The proposed interim arrangements will be responsible for the development of 
youth strategy and the integrated delivery of positive activities, targeted support and 
careers education, advice, information and guidance across the borough. 
 
The interim management and organisational structure required for the revised 
arrangements is set out in Appendix 1.  
 
It is proposed that the manager of the revised arrangements leads a partnership 
team responsible for a strategic overview of needs and services. In addition, the 
partnership team will oversee the transition process to fully integrated Connexions 
and Youth Services by September 2007  
 

• Manager from Nord Anglia Lifetime Development. (NALD) 
• Manager of Rotherham Youth Service. 
• A manager from the health sector. 
• A manager responsible for Widening Participation (funded from the 

Connexions budget). 
• Voluntary sector representative. 
• Senior School Improvement Adviser (to ensure appropriate involvement of the 

school improvement function). 
 
Integrated Connexions and Youth Services 
 
The benefits of integration are significant: 
 

• Making services for young people more efficient and effective. 
• Bringing together youth strategy development and funding in one place 

allowing for transparency and a single point of responsibility and 
accountability. 

• Engaging more young people in positive activities and empowering them 
through voice and influence activity to shape the services they receive.  

• The joining together of current advice, information, counselling and guidance 
services provided by a range of organisations so that young people have a 
single point of call for these services. 

• Providing better and more personalised intensive support for each young 
person who has serious problems or gets into trouble.  

• The involvement of a wide range of organisations from the voluntary, 
community, independent and private sectors to increase choice and secure 
the best outcomes. 

• Making services more responsive to what young people and their 
parents/carers need. 

• Having a single set of agreed outcomes that drive the whole service across 
the borough. 

Page 7



 6

It is proposed that the core functions of the new arrangements are: 
 

• To champion young people. 
• To enable and ensure that the voice and influence of young people impacts 

on the planning, delivery and evaluation of all services for young people. 
• To co-ordinate and develop youth policy and strategy. 
• To co-ordinate a partnership approach to the four functions of: 

o Assess need; 
o Map services; 
o Plan through the C&YPS; 
o Monitor, evaluate, redesign and commission services. 

• To ensure that young people have access to holistic information, advice, 
guidance and support in accessible locations, which takes account of the 
whole range of needs and aspirations.  

• To work with schools, colleges and employers to provide a co-ordinated 
careers education, information, advice and guidance service, which draws on 
current labour market analysis and local opportunities for training and 
employment. 

• To co-ordinate and enable a network of developmental opportunities and 
activities for young people which utilises the resources of all partners and into 
which other services might refer young people who are the focus of multi-
agency support.  

• Fully participate in the ECM agenda by: 
o Participating in multi-agency teams as appropriate. 
o Ensuring that there are clear referral routes into the service for young 

people in need of intensive support.  
o To act as lead professional, as appropriate, for young people referred 

to service that are in need of intensive support. 
 
Governance arrangements 
 
There will be a need for clear links between the Service and the wider Children and 
Young People’s Strategic Partnership. Reporting structures will need to be 
established through to the Strategic Children and Young People’s Board and through 
to the Local Strategic partnership. 
 
In other aspects the Service should be accountable like any other C&YPS Service 
Area through the C&YPS JLT, RMBC Corporate Management Team and to RMBC 
Cabinet Member and full Cabinet. 
 
These arrangements may need modifying as Children’s Trust arrangements are 
developed. 
 
 
8. Finance:  
 
The integrated Service will be funded through existing RMBC revenue budgets and 
the existing Connexions funding which will be channelled through RMBC from 1st 
April 2007. In addition the Service will seek to align or pool other budgets currently 
committed to work with the teenage years as appropriate. 

Page 8



 7

No new RMBC revenue funding will be needed in order to establish the revised 
management arrangements.  
 
The total identified budget for the Service is estimated as (at 2006/7 levels): 
 
               £ 
 

Young People’s Services     2,500,000 
Connexions Rotherham allocation    2,812,000 
Share of Connexions central costs        222,000 
 
Total        3,284,000  
 

Young People’s Services external income (excluding connexions contracts) last 
financial year was around £1,000,000 so assuming agreement on some additional 
pooled budgets it is not unreasonable to assume that the Service will have a total 
budget of in excess of £4m.  
 
There may be savings, especially into the long term, from the successful 
implementation of the integrated Connexions and Youth service, which could be 
redirected toward priority areas of work. Integration and a shared commitment to 
locally delivered services, prevention and early intervention should reduce pressure 
on other provision and its associated costs. 
 
It is proposed that the YPS base budget is committed to the provision of universal 
services for all young people across RMBC and that external monies are targeted 
according to greatest need. 
 
 
9. Risks and Uncertainties:  
 
The proposed model of service integration will reduce the risk of inefficiencies in 
services not being deployed according to need. It also provides a workable structure 
within which to harness professional skills and human resource within a coherent 
framework that promotes multi-disciplinary working whilst ensuring that specialist 
expertise is not jeopardised.  
 
Not making the changes would risk inconsistency with the clear expectations of 
service delivery within Every Child Matters: Change for Children and within Youth 
Matters. In turn, this would jeopardise improvement to the quality of provision for 
young people. 
 
The formation of the revised service will require the termination of the current 
Connexions Deed between the South Yorkshire Local Authorities, the winding up of 
Connexions South Yorkshire Ltd. and possible redundancies or TUPE transfers 
related to the ending of current delivery patterns. 
 
This will need careful management with continued appropriate involvement from 
colleagues within Legal and Democratic Services and Human Resources. 
 

Page 9



 8

The Local Authority must ensure that the Secretary of State’s statutory duties are 
fulfilled with no gap in service when responsibility is transferred at the end of the 
financial year. Government Office is closely monitoring reorganisation proposals and 
a transition plan has been written and approved by Government Office. This is 
presented as Appendix 2. The transition plan will be updated regularly. 
 
 
10. Policy and Performance Agenda Implications:  
 
The proposed model, if adopted, will help to ensure that provision for young people 
within the Single Children and Young People’s Plan is related directly to need as well 
as ensuring that all statutory responsibilities are met.  
 
The proposed Service must be outcome-focussed and able to demonstrate its 
impact and effectiveness.  
 
Key performance indicators already exist for the work through the DfES/National 
Youth Agency standards contained with ‘Resourcing Excellent Youth Services’, 
through OFSTED inspection criteria, through BVPI 221 and through the LPSA/LAA 
NEET target. 
 
Youth Matters also promises a complete new set of standards for integrated Youth 
Support Services and a new statutory obligation on local authorities to secure 
positive activities for all young people, as measured against these standards. 
 
The local authority will also be required to fulfil the Secretary of State’s statutory 
duties to provide a Careers service to young people, Section 140 assessments and 
the provision of  the CCIS database. 
 
By improving the quality of Services to young people these proposals will play a 
significant role in delivering the outcomes contained within the Community Strategy 
Corporate Strategy, Neighbourhood Renewal Strategy and the ECM framework. 
 
 
11. Background Papers and Consultation:  
 
Consultation 
 
The consultants employed to draw up proposals interviewed 41 different 
stakeholders and organised several consultation events including several Reference 
Group meetings and a half-day conference. Two different groups of young people 
were also directly involved in the discussion of proposals. 
 
Background papers 
 
• The Education and Inspection Bill 2006 
• Youth Matters. DfES 2005 
• Every Child Matters: Change for Children, DfES 2003 
• Resourcing Excellent Youth Services. DfES 2002 
• Transitions.  ODPM 2005. 

Page 10



 9

Contact Name:  
Joyce Thacker, Senior Head of Service, Children and Young People’s Services 
Telephone: (01709) 822506 
E-mail: joyce.thacker@rotherham.gov.uk 
 
 

Page 11



Ap
pe

nd
ix

 1
 

18
.1

0.
06

 

Yo
un

g 
Pe

op
le

’s
 S

er
vi

ce
 

In
te

rim
 M

an
ag

em
en

t S
tr

uc
tu

re
 

  
 

YP
S 

M
an

ag
er

 

 
Yo

ut
h 

W
or

k 
M

an
ag

er
 

V 
& 

I O
ffi

ce
r 

 
*W

id
en

in
g 

Pa
rti

ci
pa

tio
n 

M
an

ag
er

 

Q
ua

lit
y 

As
su

ra
nc

e 
St

af
f D

ev
el

op
m

en
t &

 C
ur

ric
ul

um
 

M
an

ag
er

 

 
Bu

si
ne

ss
 M

an
ag

er
 *R

es
ea

rc
h/

 
M

I O
ffi

ce
r 

 

*C
on

tra
ct

s 
O

ffi
ce

r 

*A
dm

in
. 

TP
 

C
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

D
ru

gs
 

C
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

*Q
ua

lit
y 

As
su

ra
nc

e 
 

O
ffi

ce
r 

O
ut

do
or

 E
du

ca
tio

n 
O

ffi
ce

r 

  
Ar

ea
 B

as
ed

 Y
ou

th
 

W
or

k 

Ta
rg

et
ed

 Y
ou

th
 

Su
pp

or
t O

ffi
ce

r 

 
LG

B 
R

is
ky

 B
us

in
es

s 
Yo

ut
h 

St
ar

t 
Yo

ut
h 

En
te

rp
ris

e 
Vo

lu
nt

ee
rin

g 
C

om
m

un
ity

 S
af

et
y 

 
Yo

ut
h 

Se
rv

ic
e 

PA
s 

Vo
l S

ec
to

r P
As

 
(R

C
R

P 
C

on
tra

ct
) 

IA
G

 to
 th

os
e 

no
t i

n 
sc

ho
ol

/c
ol

le
ge

 
(L

ife
tim

e 
C

on
tra

ct
) 

  
Sc

ho
ol

s 
 

an
d 

C
ol

le
ge

s 

Tr
an

si
tio

n 
in

to
 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 in

te
gr

at
ed

 
Se

rv
ic

es
 

W
id

en
in

g 
Pa

rti
ci

pa
tio

n 
O

ffi
ce

r 

 
Li

fe
tim

e 
C

on
tra

ct
 

* P
os

ts
 fu

nd
ed

 w
ho

lly
 o

r p
ar

tly
 w

ith
 

C
on

ne
xi

on
s 

fu
nd

in
g 

↔
 

↔
↔

Page 12



R
ot

he
rh

am
 T

ra
ns

iti
on

 P
la

n 
20

06
-2

00
7 

 
A

PP
EN

D
IX

 2
 

  M
an

ag
in

g 
th

e 
Tr

an
si

tio
n 

Ja
n 

20
06

- A
pr

il 
20

07
: 

 
• 

Sc
op

e 
ou

t Y
ou

th
 S

up
po

rt
 a

nd
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t S

er
vi

ce
 

• 
Tr

an
sf

er
 o

f C
on

ne
xi

on
s 

Se
rv

ic
e 

in
to

 C
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

an
d 

Yo
un

g 
Pe

op
le

s 
Se

rv
ic

e 
 Th

e 
ta

sk
 b

ef
or

e 
us

 is
 to

 m
an

ag
e 

th
e 

tr
an

si
tio

n 
be

tw
ee

n 
cu

rr
en

t a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 a

nd
 a

 n
ew

 Y
ou

th
 S

up
po

rt
 a

nd
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t S

er
vi

ce
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e 

tr
an

sf
er

 o
f s

er
vi

ce
s 

cu
rr

en
tly

 d
el

iv
er

ed
 th

ro
ug

h 
C

on
ne

xi
on

s.
 

 A)
 

In
te

gr
at

io
n 

of
 Y

ou
th

 S
up

po
rt

 a
nd

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t S
er

vi
ce

 in
to

 C
hi

ld
re

n 
&

 Y
ou

ng
 P

eo
pl

es
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

 
O

bj
ec

tiv
es

 
Ac

tio
ns

 
St

ar
t E

nd
 

D
at

e 
Pr

og
re

ss
 

Le
ad

 
O

ut
co

m
e 

1.
 

C
re

at
e 

ne
w

 Y
PS

 s
er

vi
ce

 
• 

Ag
re

e 
ou

tli
ne

 a
t J

LT
/C

M
T 

• 
Ta

ke
 b

ac
k 

to
 re

fe
re

nc
e 

gr
ou

p 
• 

Es
ta

bl
is

h 
in

te
rim

 m
an

ag
em

en
t t

ea
m

 
• 

Es
ta

bl
is

hm
en

t o
f n

ew
 p

os
ts

 a
nd

 n
ew

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t s
tru

ct
ur

e 
• 

Es
ta

bl
is

h 
co

nf
er

en
ce

 a
rra

ng
em

en
ts

 
• 

D
ev

el
op

 re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 fr
om

 S
ep

t J
LT

 
pa

pe
r 

 

Au
gu

st
 

Se
pt

em
be

r 
Se

pt
em

be
r 

O
ct

/M
ar

 0
7 

 M
ar

ch
 

  

A 
     R

N
 

To
 h

av
e 

ag
re

ed
 s

tru
ct

ur
e 

of
 Y

ou
th

 
Su

pp
or

t S
er

vi
ce

 in
 R

ot
he

rh
am

 fo
r 

fu
tu

re
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

     

2.
 

Yo
ut

h 
Su

pp
or

t a
nd

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
Se

rv
ic

e 
is

 in
co

rp
or

at
ed

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
R

ot
he

rh
am

 S
in

gl
e 

C
hi

ld
re

n 
Pl

an
 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 
  

• 
YS

D
S 

ai
m

s,
 o

bj
ec

tiv
es

 a
nd

 ta
rg

et
s 

ar
e 

al
ig

ne
d 

w
ith

 C
YP

S 
 

• 
To

 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 p

rio
rit

ie
s 

th
e 

re
du

ct
io

n 
of

 
N

EE
TS

 
• 

YS
D

S 
is

 re
pr

es
en

te
d 

an
d 

co
nt

rib
ut

es
 to

 th
e 

EC
M

 F
iv

e 
O

ut
co

m
es

 A
ge

nd
a:

- 
C

AF
  

N
SF

  
• 

Pa
rtn

er
s 

ar
e 

in
vo

lv
ed

 in
 jo

in
t p

la
nn

in
g 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 to
 a

lig
n 

de
liv

er
y 

pl
an

s:
 T

P,
 

YO
S,

 M
en

ta
l H

ea
lth

, Y
PS

M
G

, D
AT

 

Ju
ly

-M
ar

ch
 0

7 
R

 
C

or
e 

G
ro

up
 

To
 p

os
iti

on
 Y

SD
S 

as
 a

 k
ey

 e
le

m
en

t 
to

 d
el

iv
er

in
g 

ou
tc

om
es

 o
f C

YP
S 

Si
ng

le
 P

la
n 

        

Page 13



R
ot

he
rh

am
 T

ra
ns

iti
on

 P
la

n 
20

06
-2

00
7 

Ss
ha

w
 tr

an
si

tio
n 

pl
an

 
Pa

ge
 2

 
10

/2
0/

20
06

 

A)
 

In
te

gr
at

io
n 

of
 Y

ou
th

 S
up

po
rt

 a
nd

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t S
er

vi
ce

 in
to

 C
hi

ld
re

n 
&

 Y
ou

ng
 P

eo
pl

es
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

 
O

bj
ec

tiv
es

 
Ac

tio
ns

 
St

ar
t E

nd
 

D
at

e 
Pr

og
re

ss
 

Le
ad

 
O

ut
co

m
e 

3.
 

M
an

ag
e 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

pr
oc

es
s 

• 
G

et
 w

rit
te

n 
co

nf
irm

at
io

n 
fro

m
 C

SY
 fo

r £
25

K 
• 

D
ra

ft 
te

nd
er

 s
pe

ci
fic

at
io

n 
• 

Ag
re

e 
co

ns
ul

ta
nt

 ro
le

 
• 

Pr
ep

ar
e 

bu
dg

et
 fo

r £
30

K 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t m
on

ie
s 

• 
Se

nd
 o

ut
 te

nd
er

 d
oc

um
en

t 
• 

Ap
po

in
t C

on
su

lta
nt

 
• 

C
on

su
lta

nt
 w

or
k 

Ap
ril

 –
 J

ul
y 

• 
Fi

na
l r

ep
or

t d
el

iv
er

ed
  

Ap
ril

 - 
Se

pt
 

G
 

C
or

e 
G

ro
up

 
To

 in
fo

rm
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t p
ro

ce
ss

 
an

d 
ac

hi
ev

e 
be

st
 p

os
si

bl
e 

ou
tc

om
es

 
fo

r d
el

iv
er

in
g 

ch
an

ge
 

   

4.
 

C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

w
ith

 y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
th

ro
ug

h 
Yo

ut
h 

Pe
op

le
’s

 D
em

oc
ra

tic
 

En
ga

ge
m

en
t 

Li
ai

so
n 

w
ith

 Y
ou

th
 S

er
vi

ce
 P

ar
tic

ip
at

io
n 

an
d 

In
cl

us
io

n 
M

an
ag

er
 o

n 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

pr
oc

es
s,

 c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

f 
yo

ut
h 

of
fe

r w
ith

 y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
 D

ev
el

op
 N

EE
T/

en
ga

ge
m

en
t s

tra
te

gy
 in

 n
ew

 Y
PS

 

Ju
ne

 –
 

on
go

in
g 

  O
ct

-M
ar

ch
 0

7 
Se

pt
 –

 D
ec

 0
6 

A    R
 

 A 

G
S/

C
or

e 
G

ro
up

 
   R

N
 

 SS
 

• 
Yo

un
g 

Pe
op

le
’s

 v
ie

w
s 

in
fo

rm
 

st
ra

te
gy

 
• 

Yo
ut

h 
O

ffe
r p

ub
lis

he
d 

• 
N

EE
T/

Pa
rti

ci
pa

tio
n 

St
ra

te
gy

 
la

un
ch

ed
 

  

5.
 

YS
D

S 
is

 re
pr

es
en

te
d 

an
d 

en
ga

ge
d 

in
 

th
e 

pl
an

ni
ng

 a
nd

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f 

C
ar

ee
rs

 E
du

ca
tio

n 
an

d 
G

ui
da

nc
e 

w
ith

in
 s

ch
oo

ls
, c

ol
le

ge
s 

an
d 

w
or

k 
ba

se
d 

le
ar

ni
ng

 p
ro

vi
de

rs
 

En
ga

ge
 w

ith
 s

ec
on

da
ry

 h
ea

ds
 

 G
ui

da
nc

e 
Fo

ru
m

 is
 e

st
ab

lis
he

d 
(IA

G
 G

ro
up

 a
nd

 
C

EG
 C

oo
rd

in
at

or
s 

G
ro

up
 to

 fe
ed

 in
 o

r a
da

pt
 to

 
de

liv
er

 a
ct

io
n)

 
Ex

te
nd

 ’Q
ua

lit
y 

Aw
ar

d’
 to

 e
nc

om
pa

ss
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

IA
G

 S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 a

nd
 d

el
iv

er
y 

ac
ro

ss
  a

 ra
ng

e 
of

 
se

tti
ng

s 
ot

he
r t

ha
n 

sc
ho

ol
 

 

Se
pt

 
O

ct
 

  Ja
n 

07
 

R
 

 A   R
 

KB
/C

or
e 

G
ro

up
 

 SS
 

  SS
 

• 
YS

D
S 

is
 e

st
ab

lis
he

d 
as

 k
ey

 
dr

iv
er

 fo
r I

AG
/C

EG
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

• 
Sc

ho
ol

s 
ar

e 
ac

tiv
el

y 
en

ga
ge

d 
in

 
IA

G
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

  

6.
 

En
ga

ge
 s

ta
ke

ho
ld

er
s 

in
 Y

SD
S 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
Id

en
tif

y 
ke

y 
st

ak
eh

ol
de

rs
 

D
em

on
st

ra
te

 ro
le

 in
 n

ew
 s

er
vi

ce
 

G
ai

n 
co

m
m

itm
en

t 
Ag

re
e 

in
di

vi
du

al
 a

ct
io

n 
pl

an
s 

R
ep

or
t t

o 
re

fe
re

nc
e 

gr
ou

p 
In

vo
lv

e 
 s

ta
ke

ho
ld

er
s 

in
 c

om
m

is
si

on
in

g 
pr

oc
es

s 
M

an
ag

e 
ch

an
ge

 - 
cu

ltu
re

 

M
ay

 - 
on

go
in

g 
A 

C
or

e 
G

ro
up

 - 
C

on
su

lta
nt

s 
N

ew
 s

er
vi

ce
 is

 d
ev

el
op

ed
 b

y 
st

ak
eh

ol
de

rs
 a

nd
 o

w
ne

rs
hi

p 
an

d 
co

m
m

itm
en

t i
s 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 re
su

lti
ng

 in
 

be
tte

r d
el

iv
er

y 
    

7.
 

YS
D

S 
w

ill 
m

ee
t t

he
 e

m
er

gi
ng

 
In

te
gr

at
ed

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
 

• 
C

on
tri

bu
te

 to
 L

oc
al

 A
re

a 
N

ee
ds

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

w
or

ki
ng

 w
ith

 L
oc

al
 A

re
a 

Ac
tio

n 
Te

am
s 

to
 

m
on

ito
r a

nd
 p

la
n 

se
rv

ic
e 

de
liv

er
y 

• 
N

ew
 s

tru
ct

ur
e 

se
t u

p 
on

 in
te

rim
 b

as
is

 
• 

Ag
re

ed
 a

re
as

 to
 b

ec
om

e 
pa

rt 
of

 IS
 

En
d 

M
ar

ch
 0

7 
R

 
R

N
/M

V 
C

on
ne

xi
on

s 
ar

e 
in

co
rp

or
at

ed
 in

 L
oc

al
 

Ar
ea

 a
gr

ee
m

en
ts

 a
nd

 d
el

iv
er

ed
 

th
ro

ug
h 

Ar
ea

 A
ct

io
n 

Te
am

s 
  

Page 14



R
ot

he
rh

am
 T

ra
ns

iti
on

 P
la

n 
20

06
-2

00
7 

Ss
ha

w
 tr

an
si

tio
n 

pl
an

 
Pa

ge
 3

 
10

/2
0/

20
06

 

A)
 

In
te

gr
at

io
n 

of
 Y

ou
th

 S
up

po
rt

 a
nd

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t S
er

vi
ce

 in
to

 C
hi

ld
re

n 
&

 Y
ou

ng
 P

eo
pl

es
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

 
O

bj
ec

tiv
es

 
Ac

tio
ns

 
St

ar
t E

nd
 

D
at

e 
Pr

og
re

ss
 

Le
ad

 
O

ut
co

m
e 

8.
 

IA
G

 S
tra

te
gy

 is
 in

te
gr

al
 to

 Y
SD

S 
• 

To
 d

es
cr

ib
e 

ac
tio

ns
 n

ee
de

d 
to

 m
ee

t s
tra

te
gy

 
im

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 

• 
D

ev
el

op
 Y

SD
S 

St
ak

eh
ol

de
r a

ct
io

n 
pl

an
 

• 
En

su
re

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f Y

SD
S 

de
liv

er
y 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 ta
ke

s 
in

to
 a

cc
ou

nt
 IA

G
 S

tra
te

gy
 

• 
IA

G
 R

ef
er

en
ce

 G
ro

up
 C

ha
ire

d 
by

 S
S 

 

Ju
ne

 0
6 

– 
Se

pt
 

07
 

R
 

C
or

e 
G

ro
up

/S
S/

KB
 

YS
D

S 
is

 d
ire

ct
ly

 c
on

tri
bu

tin
g 

to
 

ob
je

ct
iv

es
 o

f I
AG

 S
tra

te
gy

 
   

9.
 

Al
ig

n 
ac

tiv
ity

 w
ith

 
N

EE
Ts

/P
ar

tic
ip

at
io

n 
st

ra
te

gy
 (l

in
k 

to
 

m
ee

tin
g 

C
YP

S 
si

ng
le

 p
la

n)
 

• 
Ag

re
e 

an
d 

de
liv

er
 a

 N
EE

T 
st

ra
te

gy
 a

nd
 A

ct
io

n 
Pl

an
 fo

r R
ot

he
rh

am
 w

ith
 P

ar
tn

er
s,

 K
ey

 
St

ak
eh

ol
de

rs
 a

nd
 S

tra
te

gi
c 

G
ro

up
s 

• 
W

id
en

in
g 

Pa
rti

ci
pa

tio
n/

N
EE

T 
St

ra
te

gy
 

M
an

ag
er

 p
os

t c
re

at
ed

 in
 C

YP
S 

Se
pt

 –
 M

ar
ch

 
07

 
A 

JT
/S

S 
      

• 
N

EE
T 

%
 fo

r R
ot

he
rh

am
 is

 
re

du
ce

d 
to

 a
t l

ea
st

 N
ov

 0
6 

7.
7%

 
ta

rg
et

 a
nd

 L
PS

A 
N

ov
 0

7 
7.

6%
 

ta
rg

et
 

• 
YS

D
S 

is
 d

ire
ct

ly
 c

on
tri

bu
tin

g 
to

 
N

EE
T’

s 
St

ra
te

gy
 

10
. 

Se
cu

re
 a

gr
ee

m
en

t w
ith

 p
ol

iti
ca

l a
nd

 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

bo
di

es
 o

n 
th

e 
tra

ns
fe

r o
f 

C
on

ne
xi

on
s 

fu
nd

in
g 

an
d 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

ie
s 

to
 R

ot
he

rh
am

 

• 
In

fo
rm

 a
nd

 e
ng

ag
e 

El
ec

te
d 

M
em

be
rs

  1
4-

19
 

gr
ou

p,
 C

YP
SP

 in
 th

e 
pl

an
ni

ng
 a

nd
 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 c
ha

ng
es

 re
qu

ire
d 

fo
r a

n 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

tra
ns

fe
r o

f C
on

ne
xi

on
s 

fu
nd

in
g 

an
d 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

ie
s 

to
 R

ot
he

rh
am

 
• 

Pr
es

en
t o

ut
lin

e/
pr

og
re

ss
 re

po
rt 

to
 J

LT
/C

M
T 

Se
pt

 0
6 

   Ju
ly

 0
6 

 
R

N
 

       

• 
Tr

an
si

tio
n 

St
ra

te
gy

 a
gr

ee
d 

an
d 

su
pp

or
te

d 
at

 p
ol

iti
ca

l l
ev

el
 

• 
St

ra
te

gi
c 

G
ro

up
s 

ag
re

e 
pr

oc
ur

em
en

t, 
te

nd
er

in
g,

 
co

nt
ra

ct
in

g,
 g

ov
er

na
nc

e 
re

po
rti

ng
 s

tru
ct

ur
es

 re
la

tin
g 

to
 

C
on

ne
xi

on
s 

 

Page 15



R
ot

he
rh

am
 T

ra
ns

iti
on

 P
la

n 
20

06
-2

00
7 

Ss
ha

w
 tr

an
si

tio
n 

pl
an

 
Pa

ge
 4

 
10

/2
0/

20
06

 

 B
) 

Sm
oo

th
 tr

an
si

tio
n 

of
 C

on
ne

xi
on

s 
in

to
 L

oc
al

 A
ut

ho
rit

y 
co

nt
ro

l 
 

O
bj

ec
tiv

es
 

Ac
tio

ns
 

St
ar

t E
nd

 
D

at
e 

St
at

us
 

R
AG

 
Le

ad
 

O
ut

co
m

e 

11
. 

M
an

ag
e 

sm
oo

th
 tr

an
si

tio
n 

fo
r A

pr
il 

20
07

 
• 

Se
cu

re
 L

eg
al

, F
in

an
ce

 a
nd

 H
R

 in
vo

lv
em

en
t i

n 
ne

go
tia

tio
ns

 a
nd

 c
on

su
lta

tio
ns

 w
ith

 re
fe

re
nc

e 
to

 
cu

rre
nt

 C
XS

 s
ta

ffi
ng

 a
nd

 G
O

YH
 c

on
tra

ct
 d

el
iv

er
y 

• 
C

on
fir

m
 s

pe
ci

fic
at

io
n 

fo
r 2

00
7 

• 
D

el
iv

er
y 

pa
rtn

er
s 

to
 w

rit
e 

de
liv

er
y 

pl
an

s 
• 

C
on

tra
ct

in
g,

 T
en

de
rin

g,
 C

om
m

is
si

on
in

g 
pr

oc
es

s 
ag

re
ed

 –
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

ag
re

ed
 ta

rg
et

s 
(li

nk
ed

 to
 C

TP
S 

Si
ng

le
 P

la
n 

an
d 

G
O

YH
 re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
) 

• 
W

or
k 

cl
os

el
y 

w
ith

 C
SY

 to
 m

ai
nt

ai
n 

al
l r

eq
ui

re
d 

sy
st

em
s 

• 
M

in
im

is
e 

di
sr

up
tio

n 
to

 d
el

iv
er

y 
pa

rtn
er

s 
• 

G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 e
.g

. B
or

ou
gh

 
G

ro
up

/L
AC

 o
r o

th
er

 
• 

M
on

ito
rin

g,
 a

ud
it 

an
d 

Q
A 

pr
oc

es
se

s 
ag

re
ed

 
• 

 S
ec

ur
e 

C
ab

in
et

 a
pp

ro
va

l f
or

 th
e 

tra
ns

iti
on

al
 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

  
• 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l p
ro

ce
du

re
s 

ag
re

ed
 

• 
H

um
an

 re
so

ur
ce

s 
is

su
es

 re
so

lv
ed

 
• 

D
at

a 
H

ub
 e

st
ab

lis
he

d 
an

d 
D

at
a 

sh
ar

in
g 

pr
ot

oc
ol

s 
ag

re
ed

 
• 

En
su

re
 th

e 
co

nt
in

ui
ng

 c
on

tra
ct

 m
an

ag
em

en
t o

f 
PA

YP
, N

SF
, M

V 
an

d 
U

 P
ro

je
ct

 p
ro

gr
am

m
es

 
• 

Ad
he

re
 to

 a
 d

ev
el

op
in

g 
sc

he
du

le
 o

f t
ra

ns
iti

on
al

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
 

Ju
ne

 0
6 

R
 

C
or

e 
G

ro
up

 
• 

To
 m

ee
t G

O
YH

 a
nd

 
st

at
ut

or
y 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

ie
s 

• 
En

su
re

 y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
of

 
R

ot
he

rh
am

 re
ce

iv
e 

on
go

in
g 

su
pp

or
t a

s 
re

qu
ire

d 
 

12
. 

R
ev

ie
w

 b
es

t p
ra

ct
ic

e 
• 

C
on

ne
xi

on
s 

pa
rtn

er
s 

ev
al

ua
te

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
ag

ai
ns

t S
er

vi
ce

 D
el

iv
er

y 
Pl

an
 ta

rg
et

s 
• 

Ag
re

e 
ar

ea
s 

to
 m

ov
e 

fo
rw

ar
d 

• 
Id

en
tif

y 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t n
ee

ds
 

 

Ju
ne

 to
 A

pr
il 

20
07

 
R

 
C

or
e 

G
ro

up
/ d

el
iv

er
y 

pa
rtn

er
s 

 

13
. 

En
su

re
 G

O
YH

 a
re

 a
pp

ra
is

ed
 o

f t
ra

ns
iti

on
 

pl
an

s 
an

d 
pr

og
re

ss
 

• 
R

M
BC

 re
pr

es
en

ta
tio

n 
at

 C
SY

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 G
ro

up
.  

Ap
pr

op
ria

te
 c

om
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
w

ith
 G

O
YH

 
St

ar
t M

ay
 0

6 
 

R
N

 
• 

G
O

YH
 a

dv
ic

e 
in

fo
rm

s 
st

ra
te

gy
 

  

Page 16



R
ot

he
rh

am
 T

ra
ns

iti
on

 P
la

n 
20

06
-2

00
7 

Ss
ha

w
 tr

an
si

tio
n 

pl
an

 
Pa

ge
 5

 
10

/2
0/

20
06

 

B
) 

Sm
oo

th
 tr

an
si

tio
n 

of
 C

on
ne

xi
on

s 
in

to
 L

oc
al

 A
ut

ho
rit

y 
co

nt
ro

l 
 

O
bj

ec
tiv

es
 

Ac
tio

ns
 

St
ar

t E
nd

 
D

at
e 

St
at

us
 

R
AG

 
Le

ad
 

O
ut

co
m

e 

14
. 

En
su

re
 th

e 
co

nt
in

ui
ty

 a
nd

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f 

C
on

ne
xi

on
s 

se
rv

ic
es

 to
 y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

06
-

07
 

• 
C

on
ne

xi
on

s 
Pa

rtn
er

s 
de

liv
er

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
ag

ai
ns

t 
pl

an
s 

on
 e

xi
st

in
g 

co
nt

ra
ct

s 
an

d 
sp

ec
ifi

ca
tio

n 
• 

C
on

tri
bu

te
 to

 th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f e
m

er
gi

ng
 

se
rv

ic
es

 fo
r s

pe
ci

fic
 g

ro
up

s 
of

 v
ul

ne
ra

bl
e 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 li
nk

ed
 to

 Y
SD

S 
• 

In
te

rim
 C

on
ne

xi
on

s 
Bo

ro
ug

h 
Pl

an
 p

ro
du

ce
d 

w
hi

ch
 

de
ta

ils
 c

on
tin

ui
ng

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 w
or

k 
su

pp
or

tin
g 

N
EE

T 
an

d 
vu

ln
er

ab
le

 y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
• 

To
 d

et
er

m
in

e 
an

d 
se

cu
re

 th
e 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
st

af
fin

g 
ca

pa
ci

ty
 to

 d
el

iv
er

 C
on

ne
xi

on
s 

Se
rv

ic
es

 fr
om

 A
pr

il 
07

 
 

Ju
ne

-A
pr

il 
20

07
 

R
 

C
or

e 
G

ro
up

/C
SY

 
 

   

Page 17



R
ot

he
rh

am
 T

ra
ns

iti
on

 P
la

n 
20

06
-2

00
7 

Ss
ha

w
 tr

an
si

tio
n 

pl
an

 
Pa

ge
 6

 
10

/2
0/

20
06

 

 Ti
m

et
ab

le
 fo

r T
ra

ns
iti

on
 P

la
n 

– 
Ke

y 
D

at
es

 
     

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Se

pt
 

C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

br
ie

f c
om

pl
et

ed
 

 
 

 
Ag

re
e 

sc
ho

ol
s 

de
liv

er
y 

pr
oc

es
s 

fo
r 2

00
7 

 
 

 
C

ab
in

et
 b

rie
fin

g 
re

 e
le

ct
ed

 m
em

be
r i

nv
ol

ve
m

en
t  

 
 

 
B

or
ou

gh
 G

ro
up

 d
is

cu
ss

io
n 

an
d 

re
al

ig
ne

d 
 

 
 

C
on

ne
xi

on
s 

So
ut

h 
Yo

rk
sh

ire
 T

ra
ns

iti
on

 m
ee

tin
g 

– 
Ar

en
a 

Li
nk

 
 

 
 

C
om

pl
et

io
n 

of
 d

ra
ft 

Tr
an

si
tio

n 
C

on
su

lta
tio

n 
Pa

pe
r 

 
 

 
R

ep
or

t b
ac

k 
to

 R
ef

er
en

ce
 G

ro
up

 o
n 

pr
op

os
ed

 w
ay

 fo
rw

ar
d 

 
 

 
 

Ju
ly

 
C

M
T 

br
ie

fe
d 

 
 

 
C

ab
in

et
 m

em
be

rs
 b

rie
fin

g 
 

 
 

Pr
es

en
ta

tio
n 

– 
C

hi
ld

re
n 

an
d 

Yo
un

g 
Pe

op
le

’s
 S

tr
at

eg
ic

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 
 

 
 

G
O

YH
 a

gr
ee

m
en

t/m
ee

tin
g 

 
 

 
 

M
ar

ch
 0

7 
Es

ta
bl

is
h 

ne
w

 p
os

ts
 fo

r s
er

vi
ce

 
  

Page 18



 

 
 
1  Meeting: Children and Young People’s Services Cabinet 

Member and Advisors 
2  
 

Date: 31st October 2006 
 

3  Title: Revenue Budget Monitoring Report as at 30th 
September 2006. 

4  Programme Area: Children and Young People’s Service  

 
 
5 Summary 
 
This report provides details of expenditure, income and the net budget position for 
the Children and Young People’s Service compared to the phased budgets for the 
period ending on 30th September 2006 and the projected year end outturn position.  
 
The current report shows a forecast underspend of £180k for 2006/07. The forecast 
underspend will be used to mitigate the overall forecast overspend for the Council. 
 
 
6 Recommendations 
 
Members are asked to note: 

  
The current forecast underspend of £180,000 for the Programme Area based 
on actual costs and income to 30th September 2006 and forecast costs and 
income to 31st March 2007. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ROTHERHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL – REPORT TO MEMBERS 

Agenda Item 6Page 19



 

7 Proposals and Details 
 
7.1 The Current Position  
 
7.1.1 The service is currently forecasting  to underspend its budget by £180,000 for 

the financial year 2006/07, with forecast overspends in some areas of the 
service being offset by forecast underspends elsewhere in the service. 

 
7.1.2 Details of the revenue budget position for the Children and Young People’s 

Service for the monitoring period ending on 30th September is shown in 
Appendix A attached.  

 
7.1.3 The overall forecast £180k net underspend within the service is as a result of 

savings as follows: 
 

• £100k Strategic Management – increase in recovery of external 
management fees, reduction in printing usage and reduction in RBT 
charges due to increased recoupment from schools.  

 
• £80k School Improvement – Staff slippage. 
 

7.1.4 Every attempt will be made to balance the budget during the year by strict 
budget management and monitoring. 

 
8.  Finance 
        The financial issues are discussed in section 7 above and included in Appendix 

A.  
 
9.  Risks and Uncertainties 
 The current projected outturn assumes savings agreed as part of the 2006/07 

budget setting process will be achieved in full and any funding pressures which 
may arise during the course of the year will be addressed through management 
action.  

 
10. Policy and Performance Agenda Implications 

The delivery of the Council’s Revenue Budget within the limits determined in 
March 2006 is vital in achieving the objectives of the Council’s Policy agenda. 
Financial performance is a key element within the assessment of the council’s 
overall performance.   

      
11.  Background Papers and Consultation 

• Report to Cabinet on 22 February 2006 –Proposed Revenue Budget and 
Council Tax for 2006/07.   

• Report to CMT 27 March –the 2006/07 Revenue Budget and External 
Funding. 

• The Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) 2006 /2009. 
 

 This report has been discussed with the Senior Executive Director of Children 
 and Young People’s Services and the Executive Director of Finance. 

Page 20



AP
PE

N
D

IX
 B

Pr
of

ile
d 

B
ud

ge
t

A
ct

ua
l 

Sp
en

di
ng

 

Va
ria

nc
e 

(O
ve

r (
+)

 / 
U

nd
er

 (-
) 

Sp
en

d)
Pr

of
ile

d 
B

ud
ge

t
A

ct
ua

l 
In

co
m

e

Va
ria

nc
e 

(O
ve

r 
(+

) /
 U

nd
er

 (-
) 

R
ec

ov
er

ed
)

Pr
of

ile
d 

B
ud

ge
t

A
ct

ua
l 

In
co

m
e

Va
ria

nc
e 

(O
ve

r 
(+

) /
 U

nd
er

 (-
) 

Sp
en

d)
A

nn
ua

l 
B

ud
ge

t 
Pr

oj
ec

te
d 

O
ut

-tu
rn

 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l 
Im

pa
ct

 o
f 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

A
ct

io
n 

R
ev

is
ed

 
Pr

oj
ec

te
d 

Ye
ar

 
en

d 
Va

ria
nc

e 
O

ve
r(

+)
/U

nd
er

(-)
 

sp
en

d 
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00

0
In

di
vi

du
al

 S
ch

oo
ls

 B
ud

ge
t

80
,0

55
80

,0
55

0
(2

3,
72

2)
(2

3,
72

2)
0

56
,3

33
56

,3
33

0
13

4,
54

7
13

4,
54

7
0

G
re

en
0

G
re

en

(1
00

)
St

ra
te

gi
c 

M
an

ag
em

en
t

2,
59

0
2,

58
4

(6
)

(1
40

)
(1

54
)

(1
4)

2,
45

0
2,

43
0

(2
0)

(1
37

,8
39

)
(1

38
,0

95
)

(2
56

)
Am

be
r

15
6

(1
00

)
G

re
en

1

(8
0)

Sc
ho

ol
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t
85

4
83

2
(2

2)
(3

5)
(3

3)
2

81
9

79
9

(2
0)

1,
43

1
1,

35
1

(8
0)

Am
be

r
(8

0)
G

re
en

2

0
Ac

ce
ss

 to
 E

du
ca

tio
n

1,
02

0
99

0
(3

0)
(9

0)
(8

1)
9

93
0

90
9

(2
1)

2,
77

6
2,

85
3

77
Am

be
r

(7
7)

0
G

re
en

3

0
Sp

ec
ia

l E
du

ca
tio

n 
Pr

ov
is

io
n

4,
89

0
4,

93
3

43
(8

65
)

(8
38

)
27

4,
02

5
4,

09
5

70
7,

69
2

7,
66

8
(2

4)
G

re
en

24
0

G
re

en
4

0
Sp

ec
ifi

c 
G

ra
nt

 S
up

po
rt

22
,2

20
22

,2
25

5
(1

,3
95

)
(1

,3
68

)
27

20
,8

25
20

,8
57

32
78

7
76

9
(1

8)
G

re
en

18
0

G
re

en
5

0
Yo

ut
h 

& 
C

om
m

un
ity

2,
62

3
2,

59
6

(2
7)

(9
45

)
(9

35
)

10
1,

67
8

1,
66

1
(1

7)
2,

76
5

2,
76

5
0

G
re

en
0

G
re

en

0
N

on
 S

ch
oo

l F
un

di
ng

4,
51

0
4,

43
8

(7
2)

(1
,0

10
)

(9
68

)
42

3,
50

0
3,

47
0

(3
0)

3,
19

6
3,

09
7

(9
9)

Am
be

r
99

0
G

re
en

6

0
D

el
eg

at
ed

 S
er

vi
ce

s
3,

63
1

3,
64

1
10

(4
,3

26
)

(4
,3

58
)

(3
2)

(6
95

)
(7

17
)

(2
2)

(1
00

)
(1

00
)

0
G

re
en

0
G

re
en

0
C

om
m

is
si

on
in

g 
& 

So
ci

al
 W

or
k

2,
92

5
2,

89
9

(2
6)

(1
69

)
(1

59
)

10
2,

75
6

2,
74

0
(1

6)
5,

88
1

5,
77

9
(1

02
)

Am
be

r
10

2
0

G
re

en
7

0
C

hi
ld

re
n 

Lo
ok

ed
 A

fte
r

4,
10

0
4,

02
9

(7
1)

(1
60

)
(1

66
)

(6
)

3,
94

0
3,

86
3

(7
7)

7,
40

9
7,

71
2

30
3

R
ed

(3
03

)
0

Am
be

r
8

0
Fa

m
ily

 S
up

po
rt 

Se
rv

ic
es

15
15

0
0

0
0

15
15

0
28

28
0

G
re

en
0

G
re

en

0
Yo

ut
h 

Ju
st

ic
e

40
3

37
2

(3
1)

(1
3)

0
13

39
0

37
2

(1
8)

50
2

50
2

0
G

re
en

0
G

re
en

0
O

th
er

 C
hi

ld
re

n 
& 

Fa
m

ilie
s 

Se
rv

ic
es

1,
07

5
1,

05
0

(2
5)

(9
1)

(4
4)

47
98

4
1,

00
6

22
2,

58
0

2,
56

5
(1

5)
Am

be
r

15
0

G
re

en
9

0
Su

pp
or

t S
er

vi
ce

s 
& 

M
an

ag
em

en
t C

os
ts

62
0

59
3

(2
7)

(4
)

(3
4)

(3
0)

61
6

55
9

(5
7)

1,
45

8
1,

47
8

20
Am

be
r

(2
0)

0
G

re
en

10

0
As

yl
um

 S
ee

ke
rs

11
11

0
(1

4)
(1

4)
0

(3
)

(3
)

0
0

0
0

G
re

en
0

G
re

en

0
C

hi
ld

re
n 

& 
Fa

m
ilie

s 
G

ra
nt

87
6

85
1

(2
5)

(9
98

)
(1

,0
14

)
(1

6)
(1

22
)

(1
63

)
(4

1)
0

0
0

G
re

en
0

G
re

en

 
(1

80
)

To
ta

l f
or

 S
er

vi
ce

13
2,

41
8

13
2,

11
4

(3
04

)
(3

3,
97

7)
(3

3,
88

8)
89

98
,4

41
98

,2
26

(2
15

)
33

,1
13

32
,9

19
(1

94
)

14
(1

80
)

 
R

ea
so

n 
fo

r V
ar

ia
nc

e(
s)

, A
ct

io
ns

 P
ro

po
se

d 
an

d 
In

te
nd

ed
 Im

pa
ct

 o
n 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 

N
O

TE
S

R
ea

so
ns

 fo
r V

ar
ia

nc
e(

s)
 a

nd
 P

ro
po

se
d 

A
ct

io
ns

 
Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 

R
ea

so
ns

 fo
r V

ar
ia

nc
e 

N
ot

e 
8

1
Th

e 
re

la
te

d 
Pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 In
di

ca
to

rs
 a

re
:

2
BV

 4
9 

- S
ta

bi
lit

y 
of

 P
la

ce
m

en
ts

 o
f l

oo
ke

d 
af

te
r c

hi
ld

re
n

3
BV

 1
63

 - 
Ad

op
tio

ns
 o

f l
oo

ke
d 

af
te

r c
hi

ld
re

n
4

LP
SA

 6
 (i

) -
 A

do
pt

io
ns

 o
f l

oo
ke

d 
af

te
r c

hi
ld

re
n

5
Th

e 
fu

nd
in

g 
w

ill 
co

nt
in

ue
 to

 s
ta

bi
lis

e 
pl

ac
em

en
ts

 fo
r l

oo
ke

d 
af

te
r c

hi
ld

re
n

6
U

nd
er

sp
en

d 
on

 p
os

t 1
6 

tra
ve

l a
nd

 re
al

lo
ca

tio
n 

of
 g

ra
nt

 fu
nd

in
g

7 8 9
U

nd
er

sp
en

d 
on

 jo
in

tly
 fu

nd
ed

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
pa

rtl
y 

of
fs

et
 b

y 
an

 o
ve

rs
pe

nd
 o

n 
ad

op
tio

n 
al

lo
w

an
ce

s
10 1 2

R
ec

ou
pm

en
t o

f i
nc

om
e 

to
 m

iti
ga

te
 th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l f

or
ec

as
t o

ve
rs

pe
nd

 a
cr

os
s 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l

3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

In
cr

ea
se

s 
in

 s
ta

ffi
ng

 c
ov

er
 &

 re
pa

ir 
ex

pe
nd

itu
re

 in
 re

si
de

nt
ia

l u
ni

ts
 &

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 c

os
ts

 fr
om

 e
xt

en
si

on
s 

to
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 o

ut
 o

f a
ut

ho
rit

y 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l &
 fo

st
er

in
g 

pl
ac

em
en

ts
 &

 c
os

t o
f n

ew
 R

es
id

en
ce

 O
rd

er
 a

llo
w

an
ce

s.

Pr
es

su
re

s 
in

 a
re

as
 o

f i
ns

ur
an

ce
 p

re
m

iu
m

s 
& 

co
m

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

 b
ud

ge
ts

Fo
re

ca
st

 u
nd

er
sp

en
d 

to
 b

e 
us

ed
 to

 re
du

ce
 o

ve
rs

pe
nd

 e
ls

ew
he

re

Pr
op

os
ed

 A
ct

io
ns

 to
 A

dd
re

ss
 V

ar
ia

nc
e 

£1
56

K 
of

 fo
re

ca
st

 u
nd

er
sp

en
d 

to
 b

e 
us

ed
 to

 re
du

ce
 o

ve
rs

pe
nd

 e
ls

ew
he

re
 - 

£1
00

K 
to

 m
iti

ga
te

 th
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l f
or

ec
as

t o
ve

rs
pe

nd
 a

cr
os

s 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l

Fo
re

ca
st

 o
ve

rs
pe

nd
 to

 b
e 

co
ve

re
d 

by
 u

nd
er

sp
en

d 
el

se
w

he
re

Fo
re

ca
st

 u
nd

er
sp

en
d 

to
 b

e 
us

ed
 to

 re
du

ce
 o

ve
rs

pe
nd

 e
ls

ew
he

re
Fo

re
ca

st
 u

nd
er

sp
en

d 
to

 b
e 

us
ed

 to
 re

du
ce

 o
ve

rs
pe

nd
 e

ls
ew

he
re

C
ur

re
nt

 
pr

oj
ec

te
d 

ye
ar

 e
nd

 
Va

ria
nc

e 
O

ve
r (

+)
/ 

U
nd

er
 (-

) 
sp

en
d 

C
ur

re
nt

 
Fi

na
nc

ia
l 

R
A

G
 

St
at

us

R
ev

is
ed

  
Fi

na
nc

ia
l 

R
A

G
 

St
at

us

St
af

f S
lip

pa
ge

O
ve

rs
pe

nd
 o

n 
ho

m
e 

to
 s

ch
oo

l t
ra

ns
po

rt 
ex

pe
nd

itu
re

 d
ue

 to
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 d
ut

y 
pa

rtl
y 

of
fs

et
 b

y 
re

du
ce

d 
ex

pe
nd

itu
re

 o
n 

Ex
tra

 D
is

tri
ct

 
Pl

ac
em

en
ts

.
St

af
f S

lip
pa

ge

St
af

f S
lip

pa
ge

, i
nc

re
as

e 
to

 e
xt

er
na

l M
an

ag
em

en
t F

ee
s,

 re
du

ct
io

ns
 to

 p
rin

tin
g 

us
ag

e 
& 

re
du

ct
io

n 
in

 R
BT

 c
ha

rg
e 

du
e 

to
 in

cr
ea

se
d 

re
co

up
m

en
t f

ro
m

 S
ch

oo
ls

.
R

ec
ou

pm
en

t o
f i

nc
om

e

N
ET

 P
R

O
JE

C
TE

D
 O

U
T-

TU
R

N
 

St
af

f s
lip

pa
ge

EX
PE

N
D

IT
U

R
E/

IN
C

O
M

E 
TO

 D
A

TE
   

   
   

 (A
s 

at
 3

0 
Se

pt
em

be
r 2

00
6)

 
C

H
IL

D
R

EN
'S

 A
N

D
 Y

O
U

N
G

 P
EO

PL
E'

S 
SE

R
VI

C
ES

 

La
st

 
R

ep
or

te
d 

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
N

et
 

Va
ria

nc
e 

as
 

at
 3

1/
08

/0
6

Se
rv

ic
e 

D
iv

is
io

n

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
In

co
m

e

* N
ot

e

N
et

Fo
re

ca
st

 u
nd

er
sp

en
d 

to
 b

e 
us

ed
 to

 re
du

ce
 o

ve
rs

pe
nd

 e
ls

ew
he

re
 &

 u
se

 o
f r

ec
ru

itm
en

t &
 re

te
nt

io
n 

in
iti

at
iv

es
 to

 re
du

ce
 fu

rth
er

 s
ta

ff 
sl

ip
pa

ge
 &

 m
ax

im
is

at
io

n 
of

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 g
ra

nt
s 

to
 c

ov
er

 b
ac

kf
ill 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

Fo
re

ca
st

 o
ve

rs
pe

nd
 to

 b
e 

co
ve

re
d 

by
 u

nd
er

sp
en

d 
el

se
w

he
re

 &
 c

on
tin

ue
 to

 re
gu

la
rly

 re
vi

ew
 th

e 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

ne
ss

 o
f o

ut
 o

f a
ut

ho
rit

y 
pl

ac
em

en
ts

 &
 c

on
tin

ue
 to

 m
an

ag
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 u

se
 o

f a
ge

nc
y 

w
or

ke
rs

, c
as

ua
l w

or
ke

rs
 a

nd
 o

ve
rti

m
e 

in
 re

si
de

nt
ia

l u
ni

ts
.

Fo
re

ca
st

 u
nd

er
sp

en
d 

to
 b

e 
us

ed
 to

 re
du

ce
 o

ve
rs

pe
nd

 e
ls

ew
he

re
Fo

re
ca

st
 o

ve
rs

pe
nd

 to
 b

e 
co

ve
re

d 
by

 u
nd

er
sp

en
d 

el
se

w
he

re

Page 21



Sp
en

d 
Fo

re
ca

st
Fo

re
ca

st
R

A
G

 
C

om
m

en
ts

A
nn

ua
l T

ar
ge

t 
To

 D
at

e 
O

ut
-T

ur
n

Va
ria

nc
e

St
at

us
 

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

B
IP

S 

Sp
ec

ia
lis

t P
la

ce
m

en
ts

 fo
r C

hi
ld

re
n 

w
ith

 C
om

pl
ex

 n
ee

ds
65

0
39

3
80

5
15

5
R

ed
Pr

oj
ec

te
d 

ov
er

sp
en

d 
ba

se
d 

on
 

cu
rre

nt
 c

lie
nt

 g
ro

up
.

In
cr

ea
se

 in
 N

SP
C

C
 C

on
tra

ct
15

0
15

0
G

re
en

D
ire

ct
 P

ay
m

en
ts

14
0

40
14

0
0

G
re

en
Fo

st
er

 c
ar

e 
Al

lo
w

an
ce

s
31

7
15

8
31

7
0

G
re

en

Ad
op

tio
n 

- I
nt

er
ag

en
cy

 F
ee

s
80

45
86

6
Am

be
r

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
ov

er
sp

en
d 

ba
se

d 
on

 
nu

m
be

r o
f a

do
pt

iv
e 

pl
ac

em
en

ts
 

pu
rc

ha
se

d
Ad

op
tio

n 
- S

ta
ffi

ng
60

26
60

0
G

re
en

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t B
ud

ge
t

35
0

17
5

35
0

0
G

re
en

St
re

ng
th

en
in

g 
of

 S
ch

oo
l I

m
pr

ov
em

en
t S

er
vi

ce
75

38
75

0
G

re
en

R
is

ky
 B

us
in

es
s

30
15

30
0

G
re

en

To
ta

l B
IP

s
1,

71
7

89
0

1,
87

8
16

1

Sa
vi

ng
Fo

re
ca

st
Fo

re
ca

st
A

nn
ua

l S
av

in
g 

To
 D

at
e 

A
nn

ua
l S

av
in

g
Va

ria
nc

e
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
SI

PS
 

C
lie

nt
 T

ra
ns

po
rt

-1
6 

-5
 

-1
6 

0
G

re
en

Le
av

in
g 

C
ar

e 
Se

rv
ic

es
-3

0 
-1

5 
-3

0 
0

G
re

en
D

is
es

ta
bl

is
hm

en
t o

f F
.C

.R
.T

-7
0 

-3
5 

-7
0 

0
G

re
en

C
lo

su
re

 o
f A

do
pt

io
n 

& 
Fo

st
er

in
g 

R
ec

ru
itm

en
t C

en
tre

-1
8 

0
-1

5 
5

Am
be

r

Sh
op

 c
lo

se
d 

en
d 

of
 M

ay
 2

00
6 

to
 

m
ee

t l
ea

se
 c

on
di

tio
ns

.  
Fu

ll 
sa

vi
ng

 w
ill 

no
t b

e 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 d

ue
 to

 
le

as
e 

co
st

s.
R

oc
ki

ng
ha

m
 P

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l D

ev
el

op
m

en
t S

er
vi

ce
-3

5 
-3

5 
-3

5 
0

G
re

en
G

ov
en

or
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t S

er
vi

ce
-2

5 
-2

5 
-2

5 
0

G
re

en
R

BT
 S

ec
on

dm
en

ts
-6

5 
-6

5 
-6

5 
0

G
re

en
Tr

ai
ni

ng
 B

ud
ge

t
-1

0 
-1

0 
-1

0 
0

G
re

en
SE

N
 &

 T
ra

ns
po

rt
-1

3 
-1

3 
-1

3 
0

G
re

en
Ed

uc
at

io
n 

W
el

fa
re

 S
er

vi
ce

s
-1

0 
-1

0 
-1

0 
0

G
re

en
N

or
fo

lk
 H

ou
se

 R
ef

re
sh

m
en

ts
-6

 
-6

 
-6

 
0

G
re

en
Sc

ho
ol

 M
us

ic
 S

er
vi

ce
-4

5 
-4

5 
-4

5 
0

G
re

en
C

om
m

un
ity

 L
ea

rn
in

g
-1

2 
-1

2 
-1

2 
0

G
re

en
M

ul
ti 

C
ul

tu
ra

l C
en

tre
-8

 
-8

 
-8

 
0

G
re

en

To
ta

l S
IP

s 
-3

63
 

-2
84

 
-3

60
 

5

TO
TA

L 
1,

35
4

60
6

1,
51

8
0

16
6

M
EM

O
R

A
N

D
U

M
 IT

EM
 - 

B
IP

S 
A

N
D

 S
IP

S 

B
U

D
G

ET
 D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
TS

 A
N

D
 S

A
VI

N
G

S 
- P

R
O

JE
C

TE
D

 O
U

TT
U

R
N

 F
O

R
 C

H
IL

D
R

EN
 &

 Y
O

U
N

G
 P

EO
PL

ES
 P

R
O

G
R

A
M

M
E 

A
R

EA
 

B
A

SE
D

 O
N

 IN
FO

R
M

A
TI

O
N

 A
VA

IL
A

B
LE

 A
S 

A
T 

30
.0

9.
06

Page 22



 

 
 
1  Meeting: Children and Young People’s Services Cabinet 

Member and Advisors 
2  
 

Date: 31st October 2006 
 

3  Title: School Balances and Planned Use 

4  Programme Area: Children and Young People’s Service  

 
 
5 Summary 
 
This report advises of the level of School Balances as at the end of March 2006 and 
how the level of balances compares with previous years.  The report also advises 
how the 21 schools with balances in excess of 8% (or 5% for Secondary Schools) at 
the end of 2005/2006 intend to use these balances. 
 
 
6 Recommendations 
 

6.1 That the levels and planned use of balances be noted; 
6.2 That the Schools Finance Team continue to work closely with 

those schools needing support to develop their financial 
management skills. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ROTHERHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL – REPORT TO MEMBERS 

Agenda Item 7Page 23



 

7.     Proposals and Details 
 
Appendix 1 shows the movement in School Balances by phase as a  
percentage of delegated budget. 

            
Appendix 2 shows an analysis of school balances including details of the 
highest and lowest levels of balances by school phase. 
 
Appendix 3 shows how schools with surplus balances in excess of 8% have 
advised how they plan to utilise these balances. 
 
It should be noted that this year, in a change to previous years and in line with 
DfES benchmarking data, we now propose to ask schools to set out reasons 
for levels of balances in excess of 5% for Secondary schools and 8% for 
Special, primary and Nursery schools.  However, the combined balance 
schools are asked to report on will now include the balance of delegated 
budget allocations plus ring-fenced revenue Standards Fund allocations. 
 
It should also be noted that combined balances (delegated budget plus 
money invested in ‘declared savings’) of £3,892,194 as at the end of 2005/06, 
was lower (£811,911) than the school balances at the end of 2004/05.  To 
provide a like-for-like comparison the Early Excellence Centres should be 
removed from the comparison as 2005//06 was only their second year of 
operating as schools with fully delegated budgets.  Adjusting for this anomaly 
would reduce the balances as at 31/03/05 to £3,402,855; a £1,102,791 
reduction (24%) reduction on 2004/05 balances. 
 
Rotherham Primary School balances have reduced from 4.6% to 3.6% of 
delegated budgets from 2004/05 to 2005/06. 
 
Rotherham Secondary School balances have reduced from 1.4% to 0.4% of 
delegated budgets from 2004/05 to 2005/06. 
 
Rotherham Special School balances have reduced from 7.4% to 7.1% of 
delegated budgets from 2004/05 to 2005/06. 
 
Overall balances have reduced from 3.3% to 2.4% of delegated budgets from 
2004/05 to 2005/06.  (Or to 2.1% if adjusted to exclude Early Excellence 
Centre balances). 

 
8.  Finance 
         

There are no financial implications arising from this report. 
 
9.  Risks and Uncertainties 
  

Failure to challenge schools constructively on the planned use of their balances 
would be to abdicate a key role of the Council.  Such challenge also facilitates 
the identification of schools in greatest need of support to improve their financial 
management skills. 

Page 24



 

10. Policy and Performance Agenda Implications 
 
Appropriate use of funds supports the raising of attainment levels within 
Rotherham schools. 

      
11.  Background Papers and Consultation 
        Children and Young People’s Services Outturn Report 2005/06 (Cabinet  
        Member Children and Young People’s Services ~ 20/06/05)  
 
 
Contact Name: Joanne Robertson - Service Accountant-Children & Young People’s 
Service, Financial Services x 2590 
joanne.robertson@rotherham.gov.uk 

Page 25



Appendix 1

Children and Young People's Services

MOVEMENTS IN SCHOOLS DELEGATED BUDGETS AND DECLARED SAVINGS 
BALANCES 2005/06 TO 2006/07

Delegated Budget

Sector Bal B/F to In-Year Bal C/F to %
2005/06 Change 2006/07 Change

£ £ £ £

Primary Schools 1,770,324 -86,849 1,683,475 -4.9%
Secondary Schools 706,627 -467,372 239,255 -66.1%
Special Schools 455,599 40,889 496,488 9.0%
Early Excellence Centres 178,030 223,714 401,744 125.7%

Total 3,110,580 -289,618 2,820,962 -9.3%

Declared Savings

Sector Bal B/F to In-Year Bal C/F to %
2005/06 Change 2006/07 Change

£ £ £ £

Primary Schools 1,075,658 -297,399 778,259 -27.6%
Secondary Schools 319,596 -261,399 58,197 -81.8%
Special Schools 177,842 -30,661 147,181 -17.2%
Early Excellence Centres 20,429 67,166 87,595 328.8%

Total 1,593,525 -522,293 1,071,232 -32.8%

Combined Overall Balances

Sector Bal B/F to In-Year Bal C/F to %
2005/06 Change 2006/07 Change

£ £ £ £

Primary Schools 2,845,982 -384,248 2,461,734 -13.5%
Secondary Schools 1,026,223 -728,771 297,452 -71.0%
Special Schools 633,441 10,228 643,669 1.6%
Early Excellence Centres 198,459 290,880 489,339 146.6%

Total 4,704,105 -811,911 3,892,194 -17.3%

Page 26



Appendix 2

OUTTURN BALANCES 2005/06 (including Ring-Fenced Revenue Standards Fund Allocations

Analyis of No.Schools by % balance

>15.0% 3 1 3%
10.1 - 15.0% 7 1 6%

7.6 - 10% 8 1 7%
5.0 - 7.5% 25 1 1 21%

0 - 4.9% 54 8 2 49%
(0.1%) - (5.0%) 10 7 13%

> (5.0%) 1 1%
3 104 16 7 100%

130

Highest and Lowest School Balances by Phase

School Phase
£ % %

Early Excellence 192,128 33.7 19.8
Primary 114,805 9 (1.8)
Secondary 309,106 6.3 (1.7)
Special 317,520 19.2 (11.1)

(11,422)

(68,439)
(120,625)

Highest Balance Lowest (Deficit) Balance
£

117,569

Special 
% of Total 
Schools

% Balance (of 
delegated budget)

Early 
Excellence Primary Secondary

Page 27



A
pp

en
di

x 
3

C
om

bi
ne

d 
B

al
an

ce
s 

ov
er

 8
%

IN
TE

N
D

ED
 U

SE
 O

F 
C

O
M

B
IN

ED
 B

A
LA

N
C

ES
 (I

N
C

LU
D

IN
G

 R
IN

G
-F

EN
C

ED
 R

EV
EN

U
E 

ST
A

N
D

A
R

D
S 

FU
N

D
 A

LL
O

C
A

TI
O

N
S)

 

Su
m

 o
f A

m
ou

nt
 E

ar
m

ar
ke

d
A

re
a

Sc
ho

ol
s

C
A

PI
TA

TI
O

N
C

O
N

TI
N

G
EN

C
Y

C
U

R
R

IC
U

LU
M

EQ
U

IP
M

EN
T

FO
U

N
D

A
TI

O
N

 
ST

A
G

E
IC

T
N

O
N

- T
EA

C
H

IN
G

 
ST

A
FF

Ar
no

ld
 C

en
tre

13
7,

16
5

   
   

   
   

   
  

Au
gh

to
n 

Ea
rly

 Y
ea

rs
 C

en
tre

22
,2

65
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

R
aw

m
ar

sh
 C

hi
ld

re
ns

 C
en

tre
11

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
10

3,
76

3
   

   
   

   
   

  
As

to
n 

Fe
nc

e 
J&

I 
11

,2
54

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
Ba

ds
le

y 
M

oo
r I

nf
an

t
17

,9
90

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
Br

am
le

y 
G

ra
ng

e 
J&

I
25

,1
81

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

10
,0

00
   

   
   

20
,8

43
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

Br
am

pt
on

 E
llis

. C
 E

 In
fa

nt
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
32

3
   

   
   

  
2,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
C

ol
er

id
ge

 P
rim

ar
y

18
,0

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

30
,0

00
   

   
   

H
ig

h 
G

re
av

e 
Ju

ni
or

s
4,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
La

ug
ht

on
 J

&I
7,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

6,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

81
9

   
   

   
   

  
15

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
M

ea
do

w
ha

ll 
Ju

ni
or

43
,0

65
   

   
   

   
   

 
R

aw
m

ar
sh

 R
ye

cr
of

t I
nf

an
t

6,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

3,
64

4
   

   
   

  
6,

24
4

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
St

 M
ar

y'
s 

(H
er

rin
gt

ho
rp

e)
 R

C
 P

10
,0

00
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

72
9

   
   

   
  

Sw
in

to
n 

Q
ue

en
 P

rim
ar

y
19

,4
04

   
   

   
40

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
To

dw
ic

k 
J 

& 
I 

2,
43

6
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
3,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

6,
65

4
   

   
   

  
17

,3
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
Tr

in
ity

  C
ro

ft 
C

 E
 J

&I
 

12
,0

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

6,
48

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

3,
00

0
   

   
   

  
2,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
W

at
h 

C
en

tra
l P

rim
ar

y
55

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
  

30
,0

00
   

   
   

   
   

 
5,

58
2

   
   

   
  

14
,0

81
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

W
en

tw
or

th
 C

 E
 J

&I
 

7,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
8,

35
6

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
Ab

be
y 

Sc
ho

ol
Th

e 
W

illo
w

s 
Sc

ho
ol

 (f
or

m
er

ly
 G

re
en

 A
rb

ou
r)

47
,1

57
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

6,
52

7
   

   
   

  
N

ew
m

an
  S

pe
ci

al

TO
TA

L
97

,5
93

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
31

,6
61

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

23
,0

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

63
,0

00
   

   
   

   
   

  
91

,0
65

   
   

   
   

   
 

88
,6

82
   

   
   

42
2,

26
1

   
   

   
   

   
  

PE
R

C
EN

TA
G

E
4.

67
1.

52
1.

10
3.

01
4.

36
4.

24
20

.2
1

Page 28



A
pp

en
di

x 
3

C
om

bi
ne

d 
B

al
an

ce
s 

ov
er

 8
%

Su
m

 o
f A

m
ou

nt
 E

ar
m

ar
ke

d

Sc
ho

ol
s

Ar
no

ld
 C

en
tre

Au
gh

to
n 

Ea
rly

 Y
ea

rs
 C

en
tre

R
aw

m
ar

sh
 C

hi
ld

re
ns

 C
en

tre
As

to
n 

Fe
nc

e 
J&

I 
Ba

ds
le

y 
M

oo
r I

nf
an

t
Br

am
le

y 
G

ra
ng

e 
J&

I
Br

am
pt

on
 E

llis
. C

 E
 In

fa
nt

C
ol

er
id

ge
 P

rim
ar

y
H

ig
h 

G
re

av
e 

Ju
ni

or
s

La
ug

ht
on

 J
&I

M
ea

do
w

ha
ll 

Ju
ni

or
R

aw
m

ar
sh

 R
ye

cr
of

t I
nf

an
t

St
 M

ar
y'

s 
(H

er
rin

gt
ho

rp
e)

 R
C

 P
Sw

in
to

n 
Q

ue
en

 P
rim

ar
y

To
dw

ic
k 

J 
& 

I 
Tr

in
ity

  C
ro

ft 
C

 E
 J

&I
 

W
at

h 
C

en
tra

l P
rim

ar
y

W
en

tw
or

th
 C

 E
 J

&I
 

Ab
be

y 
Sc

ho
ol

Th
e 

W
illo

w
s 

Sc
ho

ol
 (f

or
m

er
ly

 G
re

en
 A

rb
ou

r)
N

ew
m

an
  S

pe
ci

al

TO
TA

L
PE

R
C

EN
TA

G
E

O
TH

ER
PF

I
PR

EM
IS

ES
 

R
EL

A
TE

D
SA

VI
N

G
S

D
IN

N
IN

G
TO

N
 

C
LU

ST
ER

TE
A

C
H

IN
G

 
ST

A
FF

TE
A

C
H

IN
G

 
ST

A
FF

 
W

O
R

K
FO

R
C

E 
R

EF
O

R
M

PR
IM

A
R

Y 
LE

A
R

N
IN

G
 

N
ET

W
O

R
K

 
PO

SI
TI

VE
 

PL
A

YG
R

O
U

N
D

45
,9

82
   

   
   

  
15

,3
04

   
   

   
80

,0
00

   
   

   
  

77
,3

65
   

   
   

   26
,9

93
   

   
   

   
11

,8
46

   
   

   
  

35
,9

79
   

   
   

   
17

,0
00

   
   

   
 

30
,1

13
   

   
   

   
50

,3
84

   
   

   
  

1,
87

3
   

   
   

  
5,

00
0

   
   

  
15

,0
00

   
   

   
  

2,
35

2
   

   
   

  
4,

24
4

   
   

   
   

 
62

,1
19

   
   

   
   

8,
03

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
15

,0
00

   
   

   
   22

,0
00

   
   

   
   

11
,4

50
   

   
   

  
4,

43
8

   
   

   
   

 
1,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

21
,5

70
   

   
   

15
,4

12
   

   
   

  40
,8

94
   

   
   

  13
,5

00
   

   
   

  
15

,0
00

   
   

   
  

6,
00

0
   

   
   

   
  

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
 

8,
00

0
   

   
   

   
  10

,1
42

   
   

   
   

14
,6

30
   

   
   

2,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

  
31

7,
52

0
   

   
   

84
,6

33
   

   
   

  
17

,8
07

   
   

   
50

,0
00

   
   

   
  

43
,1

93
   

   
   

  
47

,4
82

   
   

   
   

73
,5

36
   

   
   

5,
00

0
   

   
  

68
3,

79
3

   
   

   
12

4,
70

3
   

   
   

8,
03

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
34

1,
19

3
   

   
   

 
2,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
  

17
,0

00
   

   
   

 
1,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

3.
52

0.
24

32
.7

2
5.

97
0.

38
16

.3
3

0.
10

0.
81

0.
05

Page 29



A
pp

en
di

x 
3

C
om

bi
ne

d 
B

al
an

ce
s 

ov
er

 8
%

Su
m

 o
f A

m
ou

nt
 E

ar
m

ar
ke

d

Sc
ho

ol
s

Ar
no

ld
 C

en
tre

Au
gh

to
n 

Ea
rly

 Y
ea

rs
 C

en
tre

R
aw

m
ar

sh
 C

hi
ld

re
ns

 C
en

tre
As

to
n 

Fe
nc

e 
J&

I 
Ba

ds
le

y 
M

oo
r I

nf
an

t
Br

am
le

y 
G

ra
ng

e 
J&

I
Br

am
pt

on
 E

llis
. C

 E
 In

fa
nt

C
ol

er
id

ge
 P

rim
ar

y
H

ig
h 

G
re

av
e 

Ju
ni

or
s

La
ug

ht
on

 J
&I

M
ea

do
w

ha
ll 

Ju
ni

or
R

aw
m

ar
sh

 R
ye

cr
of

t I
nf

an
t

St
 M

ar
y'

s 
(H

er
rin

gt
ho

rp
e)

 R
C

 P
Sw

in
to

n 
Q

ue
en

 P
rim

ar
y

To
dw

ic
k 

J 
& 

I 
Tr

in
ity

  C
ro

ft 
C

 E
 J

&I
 

W
at

h 
C

en
tra

l P
rim

ar
y

W
en

tw
or

th
 C

 E
 J

&I
 

Ab
be

y 
Sc

ho
ol

Th
e 

W
illo

w
s 

Sc
ho

ol
 (f

or
m

er
ly

 G
re

en
 A

rb
ou

r)
N

ew
m

an
  S

pe
ci

al

TO
TA

L
PE

R
C

EN
TA

G
E

M
EA

LS
 

G
R

A
N

TS
B

O
O

K
S

G
R

A
N

D
 T

O
TA

L

C
om

bi
ne

d 
B

al
an

ce
 a

s 
%

 o
f 

A
llo

ca
tio

n
18

3,
14

7
   

   
   

 
31

.2
11

7,
56

9
   

   
   

 
19

.8
19

2,
12

8
   

   
   

 
33

.8
38

,2
47

   
   

   
   

8.
8

82
,8

15
   

   
   

   
9.

8
8,

00
0

   
   

   
  

94
,1

37
   

   
   

   
10

.8
58

,7
07

   
   

   
   

12
.9

69
,8

73
   

   
   

   
9.

5
72

,7
15

   
   

   
   

9.
6

51
,8

49
   

   
   

   
11

.4
65

,0
65

   
   

   
   

8.
4

2,
27

3
   

   
  

6,
00

0
   

   
   

  
48

,0
49

   
   

   
   

10
.3

48
,7

11
   

   
   

   
8.

1
10

0,
29

8
   

   
   

 
11

.7
63

,8
90

   
   

   
   

11
.1

41
,4

80
   

   
   

   
10

.9
11

4,
80

5
   

   
   

 
9.

1
31

,9
86

   
   

   
   

8.
2

31
7,

52
0

   
   

   
 

19
.2

13
8,

31
7

   
   

   
 

10
.1

15
8,

48
2

   
   

   
 

13
.7

2,
27

3
   

   
  

14
,0

00
   

   
   

2,
08

9,
79

0
   

   
 

0.
11

0.
67

10
0.

00

Page 30



KH4 (23.10.06) 

 
 
 
 

1. Meeting: Cabinet Member for Children and Young People’s Services 

2. Date: Tuesday, 31st October, 2006 

3. Title Monitoring Procedure of Post 16 Qualifications 

4. Programme Area: Children and Young People’s Services 

 
5. Summary 
 
 This report outlines the processes in place to monitor the results and progress 

of all Looked After Young People and Care Leavers in respect of Post 16 
education and provides Members with information on 2005/06 achievements. 

 
6. Recommendations 
 

That Members receive the report. 
 

ROTHERHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL – REPORT TO MEMBERS 

Agenda Item 8Page 31



 - 2 - 

KH4 

7. Proposals and Details 
 
 Monitoring 
 

Pathway Plans are pivotal to the process of enabling every young person, 
with advice and support from their Personal Adviser, to set out and achieve 
their ambitions and aspirations for their future.  Pathway Planning builds upon 
the foundation of educational progress already made by the young person 
and, in all cases, young people receive encouragement to challenge 
themselves to achieve their potential in any education, training or employment 
opportunities available. 
 
Pathway Plans and outcomes are recorded on the database at 
N.C.H. (Bridges) Leaving Care Services and are reviewed/updated at least 
6 monthly.  This information is used to underpin the data required to calculate 
the national indicator related to Performance Assessment Framework (P.A.F.) 
A4 - Employment, Education and Training for Care Leavers. 
  
Transition meetings have been established between the Get Real Team, 
N.C.H. (Bridges) Team and Lifetime Careers. These meetings take place 
three times per year and ensure that one or more service is involved or aware 
of the progress and destination of all 15 - 19 year olds who are Looked After 
or Care Leavers, ensuring that no young person is left unsupported in their 
transition to adulthood. 
 
2005/06 Achievements 
 
• 1 student achieved 3 ‘A’ Levels and has deferred a University place 

until 2007 
 

• 2 students achieved 3 C grades and 2 C Grades 1 E Grade at 
‘A/S’ Level 

 

• 1 student achieved Diploma in Game Keeping and Land Management 
 

• 1 student achieved Health and Beauty NVQ Level 3 
 

• 1 student achieved Travel and Tourism NVQ Level1 
 

• 1 student achieved Performing Arts NVQ Level 1 
 

• 1 student achieved Diploma in Health and Social Care 
 
Current Position 
 
In the 16 - 18 year old age group there are 65 young people, of these:- 
 
• 41 (63%) are engaged in education, employment and training:- 

 
- 29 are attending college or further education. 

 
- 3 are in employment. 
 
- 9 are on training schemes. 

 

Page 32



 - 3 - 

KH4 

• Of the 24 not currently engaged in education, employment and 
training:- 

 
- 6 young people are not available due to custody, pregnancy, 

disability or illness. 
 
- 5 are currently engaged with the Connexions Worker within the 

N.C.H. (Bridges) Team exploring their options. 
 

- 13 are not engaged.  N.C.H. (Bridges) Team are intensively 
trying to engage with this group of young people in order to 
improve their outcomes.  

   
In the 18 - 20 year old age group there are 57 young people, of these:- 
 
• 32 are engaged in education, employment or training. 
 
• 12 young people are not engaged in education, employment or 

training, but are currently engaged with N.C.H. (Bridges) exploring their 
options. 

 
• 13 are not engaged in education, employment or training, due to 

custody, pregnancy, disability or illness. 
 
8. Finance 
 
 When Looked After children and Care Leavers continue or undertake 

recognised training they qualify for an Education Maintenance Allowance.  
This is in line with other young people at a similar stage. Project workers 
assist young people in completing their applications for this grant. 

 
 For those young people not eligible for Education Maintenance Allowance the 

Local Authority, through the N.C.H. (Bridges) Team, assists with an incentive 
payment. This tends to be the ‘older’ group of Care Leavers who did not 
continue in education at 16 but decided to return to education at a later date. 

   
9. Risk and Uncertainties 
 
 Looked After children and Care Leavers traditionally find the transition from 

statutory education a difficult time. Many begin college placements and 
training courses but very quickly drop out due to the additional pressures 
associated with coping with independent living.  The staff at the N.C.H. 
(Bridges) Team offer support and guidance for all young people in this 
transitional phase and very often many of them enter education at a later 
stage than their peer group. 

 
 Historically there have been very few (less than 1% nationally) Care Leavers 

who have continued into Higher Education. 
 
10. Policy and Performance Agenda Implications 
 
 PAF A4 collects the data on the ratio of the percentage of those young people 

who were Looked After on 1st April in their 17th year (aged 16), who were 
engaged in education, employment or training at the age of 19. 

Page 33



 - 4 - 

KH4 

 
Current performance for this indicator is as follows:-  

 

• 2003/04 outcome = 43.5% 
• 2005/06 outcome = 62.2% 

 
11. Background and Consultation 
 

• Children (Leaving Care) Act, 2000 
 
• Education Maintenance Allowance 

 
 
 
 
 
Contact Name: 
 
Katy Hawkins, Service Manager (Looked After Children’s Resources) 
Telephone: 01709 382121 ext. 4017 
Katy.hawkins@rotherham.gov.uk  
 

Page 34



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\3\5\AI00021533\SOPupdate20060.doc 

 
 
 
1.  Meeting: Cabinet Member for Children and Young People’s 

Services. 
2.  Date: 31st October, 2006 

3.  Title: 3rd Update to the School Organisation Plan 2003/04 – 
2007/08 
(The SOP covers the whole of Rotherham) 

4.  Programme Area: Children and Young People’s Services. 

 
 
 
5. Summary 
 
The update of actual (rather than estimated) pupil numbers offers the opportunity to 
consider the effectiveness of pupil number forecasting and to review the position in 
respect of published performance indicators. A list of the statutory changes which have 
taken place during the life of the current plan is also included. 
 
 
6. Recommendations 
 
It is recommended that: 
 
i)  The 3rd update to the School Organisation Plan 2003/04 – 2007/08 is received  
 
and 
 
ii)  The update is placed on the Council’s website and all original consultees 

informed accordingly. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ROTHERHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL – REPORT TO MEMBERS 

Agenda Item 9Page 35



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\3\5\AI00021533\SOPupdate20060.doc 

7. Proposals and Details 
 
This report and the update are for information only and there are no suggested further 
action points over and above those contained within the original plan. 
 
The update highlights the accuracy of the pupil number predictions and lists the 
statutory proposals that have come into effect since the publication of the full plan.   
 
Those proposals, together with other measures, have ensured that performance 
indicator figures (actuals for 2005/06) have remained, as expected, within an acceptable 
range and that the targets set for 2007/08 (the final year of the plan) remain attainable. 
 

 
8. Finance 
 
There are no specific financial consequences as a result of receiving this report. 
 
 
9. Risks and Uncertainties 
 
There are none particularly associated with receiving this report and update.  
Regulations in respect of the requirement to produce such a plan have now been 
revoked.  
 
 
10. Policy and Performance Agenda Implications 
 
The report is for information only and, therefore, there are no decisions that will affect 
the Policy and Performance agenda.  The update does, however, make reference to 
former Best Value Performance indicators relating to the supply of school places, 
comparing the outturn figures with the estimates in the published SOP. 
 
 
11. Background Papers and Consultation 
 
The School Organisation Plan 2003/04 – 2007/08, which sets out how the LEA plans to 
meet its statutory responsibility to secure sufficient education provision is available on 
the Council’s website, together with two previously published updates. 
 
 

 
Contact Name:  Martin Harrop, Principal Officer, Forward Planning 
   Resources and Access, Ch. & YPS. 
   Extension 2415 
.                                e-mail: martin.harrop@rotherham.gov.uk 
 

Page 36



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\3\5\AI00021533\UPDATETOTHESCHOOLORGANISATIONPLAN0.doc 

UPDATE TO THE SCHOOL ORGANISATION PLAN (SOP) 2003/04 – 2007/08 
 
This is the third and final update to the current SOP. 
 
Recent legislation has led to changes in the statutory requirements to produce such a 
plan.  Initially changing from an annual to a 3 yearly cycle, there is now no requirement to 
produce a SOP.  There does, however, remain a requirement for the Local Authority to 
plan effectively in terms of the supply of school places and, therefore, a new more concise 
document will be produced for 2007/08. 
 
This third update offers the opportunity to: 
 
- consider the effectiveness of the pupil number forecasting, 
- update the forecasts for 2007/08 based on current actual numbers, 
- review the position in relation to the performance targets, 
- list the statutory changes which have taken place so far during the life of the SOP. 
 
As in previous updates, the information given includes reference to sections/pages in the 
full plan and these will appear in bold type. 
 
i) Pupil numbers forecasts – overall 
 
Table 4 in the plan shows the predictions for numbers on roll.  For 2005/06, this included:- 
 
Reception (F2) Total Primary (R/F2-Y6) Y7 Total Secondary Total 

2,787 21,702 3,675 20,545 42,247 
 
The actual numbers were:- 
 
Reception (F2) Total Primary (R/F2-Y6) Y7 Total Secondary Total 

2,797 21,657 3,632 20,476 42,133 
 
Difference (actual compared to forecast):- 
 

Reception (F2) Total Primary (R/F2-Y6) Y7 Total Secondary Total 
+10 (0.36%) -45 (0.21%) -43 (1.17%) -69 (0.34%) -114 (0.27%) 
 
The Audit Commission has previously indicated that forecasts for total numbers should be 
within a 1% tolerance level over one year and within 1.5% over two years.  Three years 
into the plan, the total figures for Primary and Secondary are well within these levels and 
even at -1.17%, the Y7 forecast for that single year group was reasonable. 
 
Population – Year groups through the schools (7.11) 
 
There are gains/losses as year groups move through schools via relocation of children and 
their parents. 
 
For Primary, there was a forecast annual increase of 20 pupils per year group per year.  
The actual figures during the plan have been +18, +6 and finally +8.5 over the latest year. 
 
In Secondary, the SOP assumed an average loss of 4 pupils per year group per year.  The 
actual figures have been – 12, -18 and -4.5 in the latest year. 

Page 37



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\3\5\AI00021533\UPDATETOTHESCHOOLORGANISATIONPLAN0.doc 

The smaller than anticipated gain in Primary and the larger than anticipated loss in 
Secondary have both contributed to the overestimate of numbers in the two sectors but, as 
shown above, these relatively small differences have produced figures well within 
acceptable tolerance levels. 
 
Section 9  
 
Shows the development of numbers, year on year, over the 12 planning areas for the 
Primary phase (Tables 6-17). 
 
The updated figures are as follows:- 
 
  Predicted No on 

Roll 05/06 
Actual No on Roll 
05/06 

Difference 

Table 6 Aston/Aughton 1501 1502 +1 
Table 7 Bramley/Wickersley 1758 1791 +33 
Table 8 Brinsworth/Catcliffe 1434 1456 +22 
Table 9 Dalton/Thrybergh 1054 1025 -29 
Table 10 Dinnington 1754 1747 -7 
Table 11 Maltby 1918 1839 -79 
Table 12 North & West 3162 3160 -2 
Table 13 Rawmarsh 1606 1574 -32 
Table 14 South & East 3308 3306 -2 
Table 15 Swinton 1194 1168 -26 
Table 16 Wales/Thurcroft 1373 1402 +29 
Table 17 Wath 1640 1687 +47 
Total  21,702 21,657 -45 
 
It is important to note, however, that the predicted numbers are based on births, plus the 
possible outcome of parental preference.  They do not take account of changes in 
housing. Those changes are highlighted in the commentary and in Appendix 7 (page 80) 
of the SOP. 
 
The specific references in Appendix 7 in relation to the above figures are:- 
 
   Area      No of houses 
 
Cortonwood Colliery, Brampton (Wath)     530 
Sunnyside, Bramley (Bramley/Wickersley)    772 
East of Stockwell Avenue, Wales (Wales/Thurcroft)   432 
 
So the positive figures in the difference column for the Bramley/Wickersley, 
Wales/Thurcroft and Wath areas would be expected.  Interestingly, 8 out of the 12 
predictions were more accurate than in the previous year (2004/05) and three of the 
forecasts are very near to the actual figure, including the two largest areas (North & West 
and South & East).  The greatest difference (-79) occurs at Maltby. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 38



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\3\5\AI00021533\UPDATETOTHESCHOOLORGANISATIONPLAN0.doc 

ii) Updated forecasts for 2007/08 
 
If the current actuals for 2005/06 are rolled forward with the same assessed year on year 
changes, together with unchanged estimates for 2006/07 and 2007/08 entry to Reception 
(F2) and Y7, then the total number of pupils in Primary and Secondary would be 21,139 
and 20,183 respectively.  These compare to 21,107 and 20,184 shown within the plan. 
 
iii) Performance Targets 
 
Best Value Performance Plan: Key Strategic Targets are shown at Table 1 within the 
plan. 
As stated in previous updates, many of the statutory Best Value Indicators relevant to 
school organisation matters have been deleted/amended over the years.  The position has 
changed even further in that there is now no requirements for such performance indicators 
to be included within the statutory Performance Plan.  There is much less government 
emphasis on the reduction of surplus places, particularly in terms of continuous 
improvement of the % figures, although an annual return is still made to the DfES.   
 
This subject will need to be considered further within the next plan. 
 
The updated figures following the latest return to the DfES are as follows:- 
  

 Est 03/04 Act 03/04 Act 04/05 Act 05/06 Est 07/08 * Target 
07/08 

% of primary schools with 25% or 
more unfilled places 

7.5% 7.5% 7.5% 6.7% 16.2% 4.9% 

% of secondary school with 25% or 
more unfilled places 

5.9% 5.9% 0% 0% 0% 0% 

% of unfilled places in all primary 
schools 

9.9% 9.6% 9.7% 9.8% 14.8% 9.9% 

% of unfilled places in all secondary 
schools 

6.1% 5.3% 5.2% 5.2% 4.2% 4.2% 

% of pupils in excess of school 
capacity in secondary schools 

1.3% 1.5% 1.5% 1.4% 1.2% 1.2% 

 
Targets were set for 07/08 (the final year of the plan) with the estimates * showing the 
likely position, if no action was taken within that period. 
 
Clearly, the main expectation was for the number of surplus places to increase within the 
Primary sector as smaller cohorts entered schools as a result of lower birth rates.  This 
has been the case, with the number on roll falling from 22,567 (03/04) to 21,657 (05/06) – 
a reduction of 910 pupils (4%).  The total of the primary schools’ capacity has fallen from 
24,695 to 24,216 (1.9% reduction) over the same period through school changes (statutory 
and non-statutory) such as ‘amalgamation’, new build through PFI/Capital Programme and 
change of use/redesignation of some areas within schools. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 39



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\3\5\AI00021533\UPDATETOTHESCHOOLORGANISATIONPLAN0.doc 

iv) Statutory Proposals 
 
A number of changes have come into effect since the publication of the full plan.  These 
are listed below:- 
 
Primary Schools 
 
Roughwood Inf/Jnr   ‘amalgamation’  1st September 2003 
Bramley Grange Primary  nursery unit   1st September 2003 
Wickersley Northfield Inf/Jnr ‘amalgamation’  1st September 2003 
Treeton CE Primary   removal of SEN unit  1st September 2004 
Rawmarsh Sandhill Primary removal of SEN unit  1st September 2004 
Wales Primary   addition of SEN unit  1st September 2004 
Redscope Inf/Jnr   ‘amalgamation’  1st September 2005 
Dalton Listerdale   nursery unit   1st September 2005 
Ferham Primary   change of site (new build) 1st September 2005 
Kimberworth Primary  change of age range  1st September 2005 
     (new build) 
Meadowhall Primary  change of age range  1st September 2005 
     (new build) 
Thornhill Primary   transfer of site (new build) 1st September 2005 
Wath Park Inf/Wath Central Jnr ‘amalgamation’  1st September 2005 
Brinsworth Howarth J&I  nursery unit   1st September 2006 
Swinton Fitzwilliam Inf/Jnr  ‘amalgamation’  1st September 2006 
 
Secondary Schools 
 
Swinton Comm/M&C College add SEN unit   1st September 2003 
Kimberworth/Old Hall  closure/enlargement 1st September 2004 
     (Winterhill) 
Wingfield    enlargement   1st September 2004 
Wath Comp, A Language   remove SEN unit  1st September 2004 
College 
 
Special Schools 
 
Abbey     change in age range/ 1st September 2005 
     provision/reduction of 
     RAN  
Green Arbour   change of age range/ 1st September 2005 
     provision/reduction of 
     RAN  
Hilltop     reduction of RAN       
                               wef  1st September 2007 
Kelford    reduction of RAN  
                               wef  1st September 2007 
Milton     change in age range/ 1st September 2005 
     provision/reduction of  
     RAN 
(There is a reduction of RAN (Recognised Accommodation Number) totalling 136 places in 
special schools). 
 

Page 40



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\3\5\AI00021533\UPDATETOTHESCHOOLORGANISATIONPLAN0.doc 

The total number of schools included within published statutory proposals during this 
period was 30. 
 
Conclusions 
 
The two main conclusions to be drawn are that: 
 i) the estimates contained within the plan have contained a good degree of accuracy and 
ii) changes brought about, particularly in the Primary sector (where the main feature has 
been falling rolls), have kept the PI figures within a range accepted by the DfES/Audit 
Commission as reasonable. 
 
It should be noted that this document is simply an update of the current School 
Organisation Plan, which covers the period 2003/04 to 2007/08. No further specific 
conclusions are drawn concerning the need to add or remove school places.  
A new Plan is scheduled to be produced in 2007. 
 
If you wish to make any comments or seek further information on this update, then please 
contact Martin Harrop on telephone number (01709) 822415 or by e-mail via 
martin.harrop@rotherham.gov.uk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 41



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1. Meeting: Children and Young People’s Service Cabinet 

Member  
 

2. Date: 31st October 2006 
 

3. Title Electronic Social Care Records (ESCR) 
 

4. Programme Area: Children & Young People’s Service and Adult 
Social Services  

 
 
5. Summary: 
  
 Electronic Social Care Records is a Department of Health requirement for all 

existing and future social care case files to be stored and used electronically.  
This will require an additional IT solution in the form of an Electronic Document 
and Records Management System that will link with SWIFT.  

 
The Department of Health target dates for implementation are: 
 
October 2004: Implementation of an electronic case management system. 
Target met with introduction of SWIFT September 2003. 
October 2005: All new cases to be electronic by October 2005. 
Target missed due to lack of funding. 
October 2006: All current cases to be electronic. 
Target missed due to lack of funding. 
 
The delays in implementing ESCR and meeting the DoH target dates is a result 
of the absence of capital funding to procure and implement the system.  Capital 
funding of 761k has now been secured through a bid to the council’s strategic 
capital investment programme.  This has enabled work on ESCR to be 
reinstated and work has already begun towards a preferred supplier.  Full 
implementation should now be completed by late 2007. 
 

 
6. Recommendations 
 

a) That Members receive this report and note the requirements of 
 Electronic Social Care Records and the progress being made. 
 

 b)  That a further update be provided to a future meeting 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ROTHERHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL – REPORT TO MEMBERS 

Agenda Item 10Page 42



  

7. Proposals and Details 
  
 A service user’s electronic social care record or case file will comprise of 

information stored on SWIFT and documents that are stored electronically.  To 
achieve this, SWIFT and the new Electronic Document Management System 
will need to be integrated or joined to form a seamless continuum of 
information.  The system once implemented for ESCR will provide the basis for 
a corporate wide electronic document and records management system.   

 
 From an original field of 12 potential vendors for the system, a shortlist of 2 has 

been selected by Adult Social Services and Children and Young People’s 
Services in partnership with RBT/BT.  The 2 short listed suppliers presented 
their solutions to a wide range of officers on 2nd October 2006 and a final, 
comprehensive evaluation is underway with RBT to identify a preferred supplier. 

 
 The present Governance arrangements for the ESCR implementation are a joint 

ESCR and SWIFT Project Board with senior representation from Adult Social 
Services and Children and Young People’s Services with other stakeholders 
where appropriate.  Direct project management responsibility lies within 
Children and Young People’s Service with collaborative arrangements across 
the two programme areas.  In addition the Corporate eGov Board has amended 
its terms of reference to include overview governance of capital spend of funds 
allocated through the strategic capital investment programme.  The eGov Board 
will provide an executive summary of ICT initiatives (which includes ESCR) to 
CMT and cabinet on quarterly basis. 

 
8. Finance 

 
 The total cost for implementation to meet Children’s and Adults Social Care 

Services needs is forecast at approximately £1,000k over 3 years with and 
estimated £650,000 required in the first year 2006/07 for procurement and 
implementation.  Detailed capital and revenue costs for ESCR are to be 
formulated with RBT once a preferred supplier has been selected.  Capital 
funding of 761k has now been secured through a bid to the council’s strategic 
capital investment programme with the ability to carry forward capital up to 
2008/9 where appropriate.  A significant financial contribution has already been 
made from the Improving Information in Social Care Grant on the work 
undertaken but some of this grant earmarked for ESCR in 2005/06 had to be 
utilised on Integrated Children’s System and E-forms due to time constraints on 
the grant being utilised.   

 
9. Risk and Uncertainties 
 
 The implementation of ESCR will impact significantly on frontline social workers 

and managers in terms of working procedures, processes and practice for 
recording and retrieving information on social care cases.   

 
10. Policy and Performance Agenda Implications 
 
 The implementation of ESCR is being monitored through the Adult Services, 

Delivery and Improvement Statement and an updated position statement was 
provided in the 2006 spring DIS.  The implementation of a Document and 
Records Management system for ESCR will contribute significantly to the E-
Government agenda and will form the foundation for a corporate wide system. 

Page 43



  

 
11. Background and Consultation 
  
 Electronic Social Care Records is a Department of Health initiative and part of 

the modernising social services agenda.  The consultation, guidance and 
specification for ESCR were developed by the DoH, Information for Social Care 
Policy Unit. 

 
 References: 
 
 Defining the Electronic Social Care Record: DoH 2003 
 
 Social Services Cabinet Paper 26th November 2004 
 Social Services Cabinet Member 18th March 2006 
 E-Government Board 27th April 2005  
 C&YP Cabinet Member 12th July 2005 
 C&YP Cabinet Member 17th October 2005  
 Adult Health & Social Care Cabinet Member 24th October 2005 
 Year Ahead Statement 2005 - 2006 
 
 
Contact Name: Phil Morris, Project Manager ESCR, EXT 2548 
   Phil.morris@rotherham.gov.uk 

Page 44



 

 
 
1.  Meeting: Children and Young People’s Services Cabinet 

Member 
2.  Date: 31st October 2006  

3.  Title: Information Sharing (IS) Index 

4.  Programme Area: Children and Young People’s Services 

 
 
5. Summary:   
 

To inform the Cabinet Member for Children and Young People’s Services about 
the introduction of the national Information Sharing (IS) Index to support the 
Every Child Matters agenda. 

 
 
6. Recommendations:   
 

• Rotherham MBC is responsible for implementing the IS Index within our 
local authority area and on behalf of our local partners. 

 
• Cabinet Member for Children’s and Young People’s services is informed 

of project progress on a regular basis as part of a broader programme of 
project updates 

 
• The Children’s Strategic Partnership and Children’s Board are informed 

of the project, progress on implementation and ensure commitment to 
the project form key partners. as part of a broader programme of project 
updates 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

ROTHERHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL – REPORT TO MEMBERS 

Agenda Item 11Page 45



 

7. Proposals and Details:   

The information sharing index will be a tool that enables practitioners delivering 
services to children to identify and contact one another easily and quickly, so they 
can share relevant information about children who need services. It will be a 
national index, allowing practitioners in Rotherham to access basic information on 
all children and young people in England. 

The index is a key element of the Every Child Matters: Change for 
Children programme to transform children's services by supporting more effective 
prevention and early intervention by improving information sharing among 
practitioners and supporting multi-agency working. 

It will enable children and young people to receive the universal services they are 
entitled to and any additional services they require, at the earliest opportunity. 

Authorised practitioners in children's services, including education, health, social 
care, youth offending and some voluntary services will have access to the index.  

Section 12 of the Children Act 2004 provides the legislative basis for establishing 
the index. The government is committed to introducing the index in all areas of 
England by the end of 2008.  Local Authorities are responsible for implementing 
the IS Index in their area, ensuring partner commitment, managing the project 
and establishing a Local Implementation Team, undertaking local projects and 
activities. 

 
Over the next 15 months Rotherham Children and Young People’s Services will 
have to complete and submit 5 Readiness Assessments to the National 
Implementation team.  The first Readiness Assessment was submitted in August 
2006, and provided a baseline of out current position. In addition monthly status 
reports will have to be submitted to the DfES from October 2006 through to the 
completion of the project. 

 
8. Finance:   
 

Rotherham has been allocated £73,401 grant funding for the financial year 2006-
2007. This grant is to specifically support the employment of a project manager, 
communication and IT infrastructure.  Additional funding will be made available 
up to the end of March 2009 to support implementation, data management, 
training and systems administration.  Early indications are that funding will 
continue at the same rate if not higher for the next two financial years.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 46



 

9. Risks and Uncertainties:   
 

To date the following risks have been identified: 
 
Risk Probability Mitigation 
Key local data 
providers will not allocate 
resources to provide data 
to the IS Index to the 
required format and quality 
specifications. 

Medium Early prioritisation of 
priority data providers and 
allocation of resources 
from ISII Grant to support 
data quality 

Local partner 
organisations will not 
release practitioners in a 
timely manner for training 
on the IS Index. 

Medium Training programme 
developed in consultation 
with practitioner 
organisations 

Local practitioners will 
not meet the targets for 
take-up of the IS Index, 
because they do not 
understand the benefits. 

Medium Local Communication plan 
and engagement with 
stakeholders 

Local CYP&F will resist 
the IS Index because they 
do not understand the 
scope and/or the benefits 

Low Consistent communication 
between Local and 
National programme 

 
The impact of the above could result in confidence in the information within the 
index been low, resulting in low levels of practitioner use, benefits around early 
intervention and prevention not being achieved and the general public having a 
negative view of the index.  Risks will be reported to the DfES on a monthly 
basis and managed by the Project manager and Project Board. 

 
10. Policy and Performance Agenda Implications:   

 
The implementation of the IS Index contributes directly to priorities identified 
within the Children and Young People’s Plan and well being Strategy by 
identifying children who are not in receipt of universal health care and education 
and in particular improving multi agency assessments.  Implementation is 
currently being monitored through the Local Authority Readiness Assessment. 

 
11. Background Papers and Consultation:   

 
The DfES are currently undertaking a national consultation with practitioner and 
the general public on the introduction of the IS Index.  This will be used to 
inform local communication and training plans. 
 
 
Contact Name:  
Susan Gray, IS Index Project Manager, 
Rotherham 01709  823504.     susan.gray@rotherham.gov.uk  

Page 47



 

 
 
1.  Meeting: Children and Young People’s Services Cabinet 

Member 
2.  Date: 31st October, 2006 

3.  Title: Joint Inspection of Rotherham Youth Offending 
Services 

4.  Programme Area: Children and Young People’s Services 

 
 
5. Summary:   
 

Rotherham Youth Offending Services were subject to a Joint Inspection, 
comprising Her Majesties Inspectorate of Probation, Health Care 
Commission, OFSTED and CSCI during May 2006.  The Inspection Report 
was published on 27 September, and focussed on 5 core areas of work for 
Youth Offending Services, noting areas of strength and areas for 
improvement in each.  A score of 1 to 4 is given for each of the five areas and 
a list of recommendations provided. 

 
 
6. Recommendations:   
 

That the Inspection Report and its findings be noted. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ROTHERHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL – REPORT TO MEMBERS 

Agenda Item 12Page 48



 

7. Proposals and Details:   
 

Inspections of Youth Offending Services are required and directed by the 
Home Office, with Her Majesties Inspectorate of Probation taking the lead.  
This is the third phase of YOS inspections and more than half of the 154 
Youth Offending Services in England and Wales have now been inspected.  
All third phase inspections are required to take place immediately prior to 
Local Area Joint Area Reviews and the outcomes of the YOS Inspection 
contributes to the JAR.  An Inspection Team of 10 spent a week at the Youth 
Offending Service offices and reviewed a total of 40 case files from across the 
spectrum of YOS intervention, ranging from preventative / final warning work 
through to custody cases.  In addition to the file review, this very thorough and 
testing inspection included case managers and staff being interviewed about 
their practice, Chief Officers and key partners to the Youth Offending Services 
were interviewed about working relationships and accountability, and both 
internal and strategic management was reviewed. 
 
The 5 core areas of work inspected and each score were: 
 
 Section score 
Management 4 
Work in the courts 3 
Work with children and young people in the community 3 
Work with children and young people subject to 
Detention Training Orders 

3 

Victims and restorative justice 3 
 
4:  Excellent; 3: Good; 2: Adequate; 1: Inadequate 
 
This is the joint highest total score yet achieved by any YOS, matched only by 
Doncaster and Newham [the pattern of scoring was exactly the same], and 
the Inspector’s view of the YOS is probably best summarised in the opening 
sentence of the ‘Overall Assessment’ section, which states: 
“We found the Rotherham YOS to be a positive and well run organisation at 
both a strategic and operational level”.  

  
Some of the main findings for each core area were: 
 
• Management – The co-ordinated oversight of crime and disorder by the 

Safer Rotherham Partnership and the high profile of Youth Offending 
Services was recognised and seen as a positive, as were the very strong 
links with the Children’s Agenda and the Children’s Board.  The Inspectors 
were impressed with the way that the YOS was able to cover both criminal 
justice and children’s services agenda in an integrated way.  The key area 
for improvement was felt to be around the use of performance data to 
improve service delivery. 

• Work in the Courts – A positive and good relationship between the YOS 
and Youth Court was noted and information sharing at both a strategic and 
operational level was said to be ‘excellent’.  Improvement is required 
around the overall quality of pre-sentence reports. 

Page 49



 

• Work with children and young people in the community – The work of 
Spurgeons Childcare, who deliver Rotherham’s youth crime prevention 
programmes, was focussed and thorough.  Within the YOS a high rate of 
attendance by children and young people were noted with timely, 
impressive examples of assessment and very good attention to risk 
management.  The areas for improvement were around enforcement 
action, evaluation of outcomes and a lack of SMART objectives within 
supervision plans. 

• Work with children and young people subject to Detention and 
Training Orders – A high commitment to working with youngsters in 
custody was noted with good links existing between the YOS and secure 
establishments. 

• Victims and restorative justice – Work carried out in partnership with 
voluntary sector provider, REMEDI, was noted as being sensitive and 
thorough.  The range of Reparation work undertaken by young people 
supervised by the YOS was noted and some of the projects were 
described as ‘exemplary’ in how they extended the skills of children and 
young people and delivered a meaningful service. 

 
In addition to formally reviewing and testing core areas of work of the YOS, 
Inspectors look for examples of Good Practice which are cited in the report 
and are promoted with other ‘Youth Offending Services’ to replicated if 
appropriate.  Rotherham Inspection Report has 15 examples of Good 
Practice, which is the highest of any Inspection so far undertaken. 
 
A total of 14 recommendations arise from the Inspection Report, 2 for the joint 
chairs of the SRP, 11 for the Head of Youth Offending Services and 1 for 
South Yorkshire Police.  An action plan to address these recommendations is 
required to be forwarded to the Lead Inspector within 3 months of the 
publication of this report – ie by Christmas. The draft action plan will be 
prepared for approval by the Safer Rotherham Partnership at its meeting on 
12 December and also for support and approval by the Children’s Board on 6 
December. 

 
 
8. Finance:   
 
 There are no specific financial implications relating to the Inspection or this 

report. 
 
 
9. Risks and Uncertainties:   
 

From the outset Rotherham took the view that work with children and young 
people who offend had to be devised and delivered in full partnership with 
Children and Young People’s Services.  Whilst this appears to be self evident 
on face value, the very fact that the Inspection Team were so positive of the 
way that Rotherham has linked the two strategic agendas makes it clear that 
this is not necessarily the case in other parts of England and Wales.   
 

Page 50



 

Indeed it is felt that such a stance – ie that young offenders are children and 
young people first and offenders second, is at odds with the Youth Justice 
Board / Home Office view point which, certainly in the early days, appeared to 
be intent upon separating young people who offend from all other behaviours.  
It is encouraging to know that the position taken by Rotherham is proving to 
be effective and acknowledge as good practice. 

 
 
10. Policy and Performance Agenda Implications:   
 

The multi-agency integrated way of working, makes the Youth Offending 
Service work pertinent to all areas of Community Strategy and Every Child 
Matters outcomes. 

 
 
11. Background Papers and Consultation:   
 
 Joint Inspection of Rotherham Youth Offending Services - HMIP 
 
 
Contact Name:  Simon Perry - Head of Service, 01709 515717. 

simon.perry@rotherham.gov.uk 
 
 

Page 51



 

 

 
1.  Meeting: Cabinet Member for Children and Young People’s 

Services 
2.  Date: 31st October 2006  

3.  Title: Joint Area Review 

4.  Programme Area: Children and Young People’s Service 

 
 
 
5. Summary:   
 
The Joint Area Review of the Children and Young People’s Service took place in 
May and June of 2006.    The draft report was received from the Inspectors in July 
but the results of the review were strictly embargoed until 9th October.  The results 
are now published and this report covers the highlights of the findings.  The full 
report is available on the Council’s website: www.rotherham.gov.uk . 
 
 
6. Recommendations:   
 
That the Cabinet Member receive the report.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ROTHERHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL – REPORT TO MEMBERS 

Agenda Item 13Page 52



 

 

 
7. Proposals and Details:   
 
Although the results are good and there are very few recommendations, we have 
made a firm commitment to broader improvements and have used the detail of the 
grade descriptors to develop a Grade 4 Plan.   Work is being undertaken towards 
achieving this, some of which may be medium to longer term.   However, the rule of 
thumb is that the grade can be achieved if at least 80% of the descriptors can be met 
and evidenced.   It may therefore be possible to achieve improved grades in some of 
the outcome areas in time for the 2007 Annual Performance Assessment.  The 
Inspection recommendations will be implemented within the required timescales and 
work is already ongoing as these areas for improvement had been identified in our 
self assessment. 
 
The grades we have been awarded are as follows: 
Grades awarded:  4: outstanding; 3: good; 2: adequate; 1: inadequate 

  Local services 
overall 

Council 
services 

Health 
services 

Being healthy 3   
Staying safe 3   
Enjoying and 
achieving 

3   

Making a positive 
contribution 

3   

Achieving economic 
well-being 

3   

Service 
management 

3   

Capacity to improve 3 3  
Children’s services  3  
The education 
service 

 3  

The social care 
services for 
children 

 3  

The health service 
for children 

  3 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 53



 

 

The recommendations are as follows: 
 
For immediate action 

 Improve information and access to services for young carers, so that more 
young carers can benefit from provision and all relevant agencies 
understand their needs.  

For action over the next six months 

 Ensure more timely access for non-urgent paediatric occupational therapy 
cases. 

 Improve the timescales for completing core assessments of children in 
need. 

 Improve participation rates in post-16 education.  

 Ensure borough-wide post-16 education and training options meets the 
needs of all young people, including young people who have learning 
difficulties and/or disabilities and young people who have offended. 

 Reduce the number of changes of social workers for children who are 
looked after by the council.  

For action in the longer term 

 Ensure voluntary sector provision is part of a wider commissioning 
strategy. 

 Improve the range of carers who offer placements to children who are 
looked after by the council, so that their varied needs are met. 

8. Finance:   
 
There are likely to be financial implications to achieving some of the measures, 
however, we may also gain some efficiencies through further integration. 
 
9. Risks and Uncertainties:   
 
There are risks and uncertainties about the grade descriptors and whether all of 
these can be achieved within the allocated resources. 
 
10. Policy and Performance Agenda Implications:   
The Joint Area Review fed into the Council’s Comprehensive Performance 
Assessment.  We are required to complete and return an action plan to Ofsted within 
70 working days.  This will be presented to Cabinet Member prior to return. 
 
11. Background Papers and Consultation:  
Joint Area Review inspection report 
 
Contact Name : Julie  Westwood, Head of Planning, Information and Performance, ext  

Page 54


	Agenda
	4 Minutes of the previous meeting held on 10th October 2006 (herewith).
	5 Arrangements for Integration of Connexions and Young People's Services (report herewith)
	Young Peoples Service Interim Management Structure
	Transition plan 2

	6 Revenue Budget Monitoring Report as at 30th September 2006 (herewith)
	Copy of CYPS Budget Monitoring 30 September 2006-07 REV BUDGET Bv22
	Copy of CYPS Budget Monitoring 30 September 2006-07REV BUD XX v24

	7 School Balances and Planned Use (report herewith)
	Copy of Appendicesbalreport311006.xlsBalances A
	Copy of Appendicesbalreport3110061.xlsBALANCES B
	Copy of Appendicesbalreport3110062.xlsBALANCES C

	8 Looked After Children - Monitoring Procedure of Post 16 Qualifications (report herewith)
	9 School Organisation Plan 2003/04 to 2007/08 - 3rd Update (report herewith)
	UPDATE TO THE SCHOOL ORGANISATION PLAN

	10 Electronic Social Care Record (report herewith)
	11 Information Sharing Index (report herewith)
	12 Joint Inspection of Rotherham Youth Offending Services (report herewith)
	13 Joint Area Review (report herewith)

